
Hem Sandeep & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To The Members of Dhani Loans and Services Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Dhani Loans and Services 
Limited (the "Company"), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2024, the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 
that date and a summary of significant accounting polici~s and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as the" Standalone: Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act') in the manner so requiired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state o,f affairs of the Company as at March 31 , 2024, the profit 
and other comprehensive income, its caslh flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone, Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(!0) of the Act ("SAs"). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI' s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31 , 2024. These 
matters were addressed in the context of orur audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in 
our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these 
matters. Accordingly, our audit included lthe performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements. The results 
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide 
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters (continued) 

Ke Audit Matters Auditor's Res onse 
a) Impairment of Loans (expected credit loss - ECL) 
(Refer notes 6 and 49 to the Standalone Financial 
Statements) 

Principal Audit Procedures 

In accordance with the requirements ofln,d AS 109, • 
the Company is required to provide for impairment of 
its financial assets using the expected credit loss 
('ECL') approach which involves an estimation of 
the probability of loss on the financial assets over 
their life, considering reasonable and supportable 
information about past events, current conditions and 
forecasts of future economic conditions which could 
impact the credit quality of the Company's loans and 
advances. In the process, a significant degree of 
judgement has been applied by the management in • 
respect of following matters: 

(i) Classification and staging of loan portfolio, and 
estimation of behavioural life. 

(ii) Estimation of losses in respect of those classes of 
loans which had no or minimal historical defaults. 

(iii) Management overlay for macro-economic • 
factors and estimation of their impact on the credit 
quality of the loans. 

(iv) In accordance with the guidance in Ind AS 109, 
the management overlay estimate takes into account 
reasonably and supportable informatiorn without • 
incurring significant cost. The actual credit losses for 
the next 12 months could be significantly different 
than the ECL estimates prepared by the Company. 

(v) The disclosures (including disclosures prescribed 
by RBI) regarding the Company's application of Ind 
AS I 09 are key to explaining the key judgements and 
material inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL results. 

• 

Read and assessed the Company's 
accounting policies for the impairment 
of financial assets and whether such 
policy was in accordance with the 
requirements of Lnd AS I 09 and the 
governance framework approved by the 
Board of Directors pursuant to the 
applicable Reserve Bank of India 
gu idelines/directions. 

Evaluated the appropriateness of the 
Company's assumptions used by the 
Company for grouping and staging of 
loan portfolio into various categories 
and default buckets and their 
appropriateness for determining the 
probability of default (PD) and loss­
given default (LGD) rates. 

Tested the operating effectiveness of 
the controls for application of the 
staging criteria of loans. Assessed the 
considerations applied by the 
Management for staging of loans. 

Performed tests (on sample basis) to 
verify the staging of loans based on 
their past due status. 

Performed appropriate inquiries with 
the Company's management and 
assessed assumptions used by the 
management in determination of ECL 
provision. 

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of 
calculation of the provision for ECL 
performed by the Company. 

(vi) The Company has developed a financial model • 
that derives key assumptions used within the 
provision calculation such as probability of default 
(PD) and loss given default (LGD). The output of 
such model is then applied to the calculation for the 
provision for expected credit loss calculation with 
other information including the exposure at default 
(EAD). 

• Assessed the appropriateness and 
sufficiency of disclosures in the 
Financial Statements in respect of 
provision for ECL. 

Given the high degree of management's judgement 
involved in estimation of ECL, it is ar1 area of 
material uncertainty and a key audit matter. 



Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder' s Information, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or, otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the above reports, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, inclluding other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility also iincludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularitiles; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible foir overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs w:II always detect a material misstatement 
when it ex ists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statemernts. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued) 

As part of an audit in accordance with :SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audi:t procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained!, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doublt on the Company' s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentatioin. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstateme:nts in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor' s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Re,quirements 

I. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act,, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the: information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of accouint as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standlalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Ac:t. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31 , 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31 , 2024, from being appointed as a dlirector in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiv,eness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company' s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the 
provisions of and limits laid down under Section 19i read with Schedule V to the Act. The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section I 97(16) of the 
Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor' s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and! Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its financial statements - ReJfer Note 38 to the Standalone Financial Statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material :foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalJf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

(b) The Management has repn~sented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material e:ither individually or in the aggregate) have been received 
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understa1.11ding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit proceduires that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothiing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations undler sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 ( e ), as provided under 
(a) and (b) 'above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded 
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of 
audit trail feature being tamper,ed with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is applicable for 
the Company only w.e.f. I Ap,ril 2023, therefore, reporting under Rule I l(g) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for financial year ended 31 March 2024. 

vi. The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and subsequent to 
the year-end. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor' s Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143( 11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

For Hem Sandeep & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm regist umber: 009907N 

per Ajay Sardana 
Partner 
Membership No. 089011 
New Delhi, May 17, 2024 
UD1N: 24089011BKFUSX6979 



ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph l(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report to the Mem hers oif Dhani Loans and Services Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companiies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dhani Loans and Services 
Limited (the "Company") as at March 31 , 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components ofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued 
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessirng the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effec1tiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor' s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliab:ility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that: 



ANNEX URE "A" TO THE INDEPENJDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued) 

Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (continued) 

(I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refle.ct the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's aissets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detecte:d. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 
31 , 2024, based on the criteria for internal! financial control over financial reporting established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by theICAI. 

For Hem Sandeep & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm registration number: 009907N 

per Ajay Sard a 
Partner 
Membership No. 08901 I 
New Delhi, May 17, 2024 
UDIN: 240890 l IBKFUSX6979 



ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report: on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report to the Members of Dhani Lo:ans and Services Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

1. In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment (including right 
of use assets). 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of 
physical verification of its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) 
by which all property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) are verified in 
a phased manner over a peri,od of three years. In accordance with this programme, 
certain property, plant and e,quipment (including right of use assets) were verified 
during the year. In our opinicin, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on :such verification. 

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land 
registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the 
title in respect of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in 
the Standalone Financial Statements included under property, plant and equipment are 
held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, 
plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during 
the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or 
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) The Company is engaged in the business of a non-banking finance company and does not 
hold any physical inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital lim its in excess of Rs. five crores, in 
aggregate, during the year, from a bank on the basis of security of current assets of the 
Company. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, 
the Company is not required to submit quarterly returns or statements with such banks. 

111. During the year, the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. The 
Company has not made any investments in and has not provided any guarantee or security to 
any other entity during the year. With respect to such loans and advances: 

(a) The Company is registered as a1 Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in the primary 
business of financing/ granting loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 



ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued) 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures conducted by us, iin our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of 
loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year are, prima facie, not 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

(c) In respect of loans and advamces in the nature of loans granted by the Company 
(together referred to as " loam assets"), the schedule of repayment of principal and 
payment of interest has been stipulated. Note 3 G) to the Standalone Financial 
Statements, explains the Company's accounting policy relating to impairment of 
financial assets which include loans assets. ln accordance with that policy, read with 
Notes 6 and 49 to the Standalone Financial Statements, loan assets with balances as at 
March 31 , 2024 aggregating IRs. 3,223.14 lakhs were categorized as credit impaired 
("Stage 3") and Rs. 7,950.14 lakhs were categorized as those where the credit risk has 
increased significantly since iinitial recognition ("Stage 2"). Disclosures in respect of 
such loans have been provided in Note 6, read with Note 49, to the Standalone Financial 
Statements. Additionally, out of total loans and advances in the nature of loans, 
balances as at the year-end agg;regating Rs. 1,60,000.15 lakhs, where credit risk has not 
significantly increased since initial recognition were categorized as "Stage I". Having 
regard to the nature of the Company's business and the volume of information involved, 
it is not practicable to provide an itemized list of loan assets where delinquencies in the 
repayment of principal and int,erest have been identified (as suggested in the Guidance 
Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for 
reporting under this clause). Further, except for loans where there are delays or defaults 
in repayment of principal and / or payment of interest as at the balance sheet date, in 
respect of which the Company has disclosed asset classification / staging in note 6 and 
49 to the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) and the applicable directions/ guidelines issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India, in all other cases, the repayment of principal and interest is regular, as 
applicable. 

(d) According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and upon consideration of 
management's representations and other relevant evidence, and based on the audit 
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, the Company, in pursuance of applicable 
compliances prescribed under the Act and applicable directions/ guidelines issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India, particularly relating to Income Recognition, Asset 
Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors and reports the total amount overdue 
including principal and/or interest for more than ninety days. In cases where repayment 
of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof 
is taken by the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting. Refer notes 6 
and 50 to the Financial Statements for summarized details of such loans/advances 
which are not repaid by borrowers as stipulated. However, reasonable steps are taken by 
the Company for recovery thereof. 

(e) The Company is registered as at Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in the primary 
business of financing/ granting of loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature 
of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii) (f) is not applicable. 



ANNEX URE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued) 

1v. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in respect of loans granted, invcestments made and guarantees and securities provided, as 
applicable. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, 
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub­
section ( 1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by 
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect 0f Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax 
and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been 
subsumed into Goods and Services Tax ("GST''). 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in om opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have generally 
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities though there has 
been a slight delay in a few cases. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no w1disputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident 
fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory 
dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to GST, 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Value Added Tax or Cessor other statutOI) dues which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute, except as below: 

Name Nature of Amounlt Period to which the Forum where 
of the dues (Rs.) amount relates dispute is 
Statute pending 
Income Tax Income Rs. 95.04 lakhs Financial year 2012- ITAT, Delhi 
Act, 1961 Tax 2013 (Assessment 

vear 2013-14) 
Income Tax Income Rs. 7.06 lakhs Financial year 2017- CIT (Appeals) 
Act, 1961 Tax 2018 (Assessment 

vear 2018-19) 
Income Tax Income Rs. 0.25 lakhs Financial year 2019- Jurisdictional 
Act, 1961 Tax 2020 (Assessment Assessing 

year 2020-21) Officer 
Income Tax Income Rs. 0.60 lakhs Financial year 202 l - Jurisdictional 
Act, 1961 Tax 2022 (Assessment Assessing 

vear 2022-23) Officer 

v111. According to the information and exp lanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any 
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 



ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued) 

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the 
repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender during the year. 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding 
term loans at the beginning of the ye:ar and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)( c) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have 
been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, as defined in the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any 
associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended March 31, 2024. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, 
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act). 

x. (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or debentures (fully, partially or optionally 
convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out 
in accordance with generally acce[Pted auditing practices in India and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, there have been instances of fraud on the Company 
amounting to Rs. 1,772.06 lakhs (Refer Note 50 viii) to the Standalone Financial Statements). 
No fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. We have not been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

(b) According to the information a111d explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 
( 12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Fonn ADT-4 as prescribed 
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 



ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENIT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued) 

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and the nature of its business. 

(b) The internal audit is perfonned as per a planned program approved by the Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. We have considered the internal audit 
reports for the year under audit, issue:d to the Company during the year. 

xv. In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 
of the Companies Act, 20 13 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) According to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the Company is engaged in the 
business of Non-Banking Financial Institution as defined under section 45-IA of Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 ("RBI Act") and is duly registered under section 45-IA of the RBI 
Act, holding certificate of registration (CoR) as a Non-Banking Financial Institution without 
accepting public deposits under section 45-IA of the said RBI Act. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the 
Company has conducted its business activities of a Non-Banking Financial Company and is 
duly registered under section 45-IA of the RBI Act, holding certificate of registration (CoR) 
as a Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting public deposits under section 45-IA 
of the said RBI Act. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

( d) Based on the infonnation and explanations given to us and as represented by the 
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 
the immediately preceding financial year. 

xvi ii. There has been no resignation of the !5tatutory auditors during the year. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, Asset Liability Maturity (ALM) pattern as disclosed in the 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, other information accompanying the Standalone 
Financial Statements and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to bel ieve that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities fa lling due within a1 period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(this space has intentionally been left blank) 



ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued) 

xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions 
related to corporate social responsibi.lity in terms of section 135 of the Act are not applicable 
to the Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

For Hem Sandeep & Co. 
Chartered Acco tants 

!CAI Fimo r mbec: 009907N 

per Ajay Sardan 
Partner 
Membership No. 089011 
New Delhi, May 17, 2024 
UDIN: 24089011 BKFUSX6979 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated othe1rwise) 

ASSETS 

1 Financial assets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
(c) Loans 
(d) Investments 
(e) Other financial assets 
Total financial assets 

2 Non-financial assets 
(a) Current tax assets (net) 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 
(c) Property, plant and equipment 
(d) Right-of-use assets 
(e) Intangible assets under development 
(f) Other intangible assets 
(g) Other non-financial assets 

Total non-financial assets 
TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
1 Financial liabilities 

(a) Payables 
(!) Trade payables 

(i) Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(ii) Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(TI) Other payables 
(i) Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(ii) Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(b) Debt securities 
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
(d) Lease liabilities 
( e) Others financial liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 

2 Non-financial liabilities 
(a) Provisions 
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 

Total non-financial liabilities 

3 EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total equity 
TOT AL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Notes 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

9 
10 

ll(a) 
ll(b) 
ll(c) 
ll(d) 

12 

13 

14 

15 
16 
17 
18 

19 
20 

21 
22 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements. 

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report ,of even date. 

For Hem Sandeep & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

:~~~~~,o =N 

Partner 
Membership No.: 089011 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 17 May 2024 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

~A· 
Akshay Kumar Ti wary 

Director 
Chief Executive Offic:er DIN: 00366348 
DIN: 03405178 

e: Gurugram 
e: 17 May 2024 

As at 
31 March 2024 

4,319.61 
4,420.98 

1,66,596.51 
1,09,710.65 

677.04 
2,85,724.79 

6,091.78 
44,589.51 

4,130.54 
2,647.78 

2,931.46 
2,446.61 

62,837.68 
3,48,562.47 

943.88 

4,658.01 
13,728.76 
3,768.84 
3,079.02 
3,003.29 

29,181.80 

438.48 
755.44 

1,193.92 

6,118.80 
3,12,067.95 
3,18,186.75 
3,48,562.47 

As at 
31 March 2023 

11,025.35 
3,199.08 

1,36,722.99 
1,36,074.85 

2,198.60 
2,89,220.87 

17,163.85 
47,187.74 

5,659.29 
3,973.95 

317.19 
3,599.21 
3,039.63 

80,940.86 
3,70,161.73 

1,030.00 

4,671.16 
32,025.44 
7,194.91 
4,564.58 
7,158.16 

56,644.25 

1,812.78 
969.24 

2,782.02 

6,118.80 
3,04,616.66 
3,10,735.46 
3,70,161.73 

~~ 
Co cretary 
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'0 

(<;> 
CJ) 

r 
§' 

0'' 

* ~ 



DHANJ LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 20124 
(All amounts are in Ind ian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars 
I Income from operations 

(i) Interest income 
(ii) Fees and commission income 
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 

Total Income from operations 
II Other income 
III Total Income (I+ 11) 

IV Expenses 
(i) Finance costs 
(ii) Net loss on fair value changes 
(iii) Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised c:ost category 
(iv) Impairment on financial instruments 
(v) Employee benefits expense 
(vi) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
(vii) Other expenses 
IV Total Expenses 

V Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV) 

VI Tax Expense: 
(i) Current tax 
(ii) Deferred tax credit 
Net Tax Expense 

VII Profit/(loss) for the year (V-VI) 
VIII Other Comprehensive Income 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 
(a) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 
(b) Income tax expense relating to above items 

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 
(a) Changes in fair valuation of financial assets 
(b) Income tax expense relating to above items 

Total other comprehensive income(i + ii) 
IX Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (Vll+VIII) 

X Earnings per equity share (face value off 10 each) 
Basic (t) 
Diluted({) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements. 

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. 

Notes 

23 
24 
25 

26 

27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 

34 

35 

For Hem Sandeep & Co 
Chartered A ts 
ICAI Firm r n no. : 009907N ,.,~~oo,,m~~ , 

Ajay S dana 
Partner 
Membership No.: 089011 

Place: New Delhi 
Date:: 17 May 2024 

Sanjeev KashJ1ap Akshay KumarTiwary 

Whole Time Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 03405178 
Place: Gurugra,m 
Date:: 17 May 2024 

Director 
DIN: 00366348 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

18,729.04 
8,674.68 

27,403.72 
4,354.34 

31758.06 

4,031.26 
144.42 

749.54 
7,694.91 
3,667.03 
5,546.91 

21834.07 

9,923.99 

2,550.07 
2,550.07 
7 373.92 

191.32 
(48.15) 

143.17 
7 517.09 

12.05 
12.05 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

13,976.55 
19,630.00 
1,727.93 

35,334.48 
7,208.80 

42543.28 

10,813.40 

36.49 
7,737.49 

23,199.69 
5,136.95 

15,884.69 
62 808.71 

(20,265.43) 

(44.67) 
(5,850.94) 
(5,895.61) 

(14,369.82) 

972.17 
(244.68) 

(28.29) 
7.12 

706.32 
(13,663.50) 

(23.48) 
(23.48) 

Manish Rustagi 

Company Secretary 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Standalone Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

A Cash flow from operating activities: 
Net Profit/(loss) before tax 

Adjustments for : 
Depreciation/ amortisation 
Loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 
Impairment on financial instruments 
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 
Interest income 
Interest expenses 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Loss/ (Profit) on fair value changes 
Excess provision for expenses and liabilities written back 
Loss on sale of loan portfolio through assignment 
Gain on modification/ derecognition of financial assets 
Effective interest rate adjustment for financial instruments 
Loss on modification/ derecognition financial 
instruments under amortised cost category 
Share based payments to employees 

Operating loss before working capital changes 
Adjustments for: 
Loans 
Other financial assets 
Other non financial assets 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other non financial liabilities 

Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 

Interest received 
Interest paid 

For the year ended 31 March 2024 

3,667.03 
108.24 
749.54 
92.90 

(18,729.04) 
3,571.24 

448.12 
144.42 

(1,814.41) 

(243.84) 
(799.76) 

(65.80) 

(30,252.00) 
(452.84) 
556.98 
(86.12) 

1,801.26 
(4,083.07) 

(469.27) 
(213.80) 

9,923.99 

(12,871.36) 
(2,947.37) 

(33,198.86) 
(36,146.23) 

Income taxes refund received/ (paid) (including tax deducted at source) 

17,540.14 
(4,037.49) 
11,072.08 

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 

B Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchase of property,plant and equipment, intangible 
assets under development and intangible assets 
Investment made/ (Redemption) in Subsidiary/ Associates 
Sale/ (Purchase) of investments (net) 
Interest received 

Net cash generated from investing activities 

C Cash flows from financing activities: 

0 

E 

F 

Proceeds from debt securities 
Repayment of debt securities 
Proceeds from borrowings other than debt securities 
Repayment of borrowings other than debt securities 
Payment of lease liabili ties 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year (D + E) 

(11,571.50) 

(114.68) 

4,013.95 
22,205.83 

750.49 
26 855.59 

(17,102.47) 

(3,426.07) 
(1,461.29) 

(21,989.83) 

(6,705.74) 

11,025.35 

4,319.61 

For the year ended 31 March 2023 

5,136.95 
710.09 

7,737.49 
281.69 

(13,976.55) 
9,703.09 
1,000.74 

(1,727.93) 
(5,675.14) 
1,390.15 

(1,479.06) 
(4.28) 

36.49 

(3,905.79) 

74,517.12 
11,739.15 

2,190.36 
(67.24) 

1,611.34 
(6,136.97) 
1,057.47 

(1,564.87) 

(20,265.43) 

(772.06) 
(21,037.49) 

83,346.36 
62,308.87 

29,810.20 
(9,730.91) 
(1,418.49) 

80,969.67 

(153.91) 

22,004.51 
1,820.56 

23 671.16 

9,576.48 
(32,019.33) 

9,340.37 
(119,766.%) 

(2,705.94) 

(135,575.38) 

(30,934.55) 

41,959.90 

11,025.35 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Standalone Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

For the year ended 31 March 2024 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as above with other bank bala.nces 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year as per above 

Add: Fixed deposits with original maturity over 3 months 

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance as at the end of the year 

Notes: 

4,319.61 

4,420.98 

8,740.59 

For the year ended 31 March 2023 

11,025.35 

3,199.08 

14,224.43 

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the " Indirect Method " as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -7 'Statement of Cash Flows' as 
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended. 

2 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year include: 
Cash in hand 
Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
- in term deposits with original maturi ty of less than three months 

Cheques on hand 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

3 For disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 46 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements. 

This is the Standalone Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date 

For Hem Sandeep & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAJ F,= Q''l!J:;,, OOWO,N 

Ajay Sardana r / 

Partner 
Membership No.: 089011 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 17 May 2024 

Whole Time Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 03405178 
Place: Curugram 
Date: 17 May 2024 

Director 
DIN: 00366348 

0.17 

4,173.90 

145.54 
4,319.61 

0.17 

10,366.20 
348.08 
310.90 

11 025.35 

ha•Agm~~ 
cial Officer Company Secretary 



OHANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equ ity for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

(A) Equity share capital (refer note 21) 

Particulars 

Eauity share capital 

Particulars 

t:-11uitv share capital 

(Bl Other equity (refer note 22) 

(1) Current reporting period: 

Balance as al 1 April 2023 

6,118.80 

Balance as at 1 April 2022 

6,J18.80 

Changes in Equity Share 
Capital due to prior period 

errors 
-

Changes in Eqmty Share 
Capital due to prior period 

errors 
-

Reserves and Surplus 

Capital Reserve Fund 
Surplus,' 

Particulars Securities 
redemption (U/s 45-IC of 

(Deficit) in the 
premium statement of 

reserve RBI Act, 1934) 
profit an d loss 

Balance as at 1 Aoril 2023 297 573.15 900.82 13 270.01 (12 707.25 
Chane:es in accountine: oolicv / orior oeriod errors - - - -
Restated balance as at 1 Aoril 2023 297,573.15 900.82 13,270.01 (12,707.25 
Profit for the year - - - 7,373.92 
Transfer from Reserve Fund - - 1,474.78 (1,474.78) 
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - - 143.17 
Share based payment to employees - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - - - 52.99 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 297,573.15 900.82 14,744.79 (6,611.95 

Restated 
Changes in equity share capital 

balance as at 
during the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 
1 Aoril 2023 

6,118.80 - 6,118.80 

Restated Changes in equity share capital 
balance as at 

during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 

1 Anril 2022 
6,118.80 - 6,118.80 

Change in fair 
value of loan 

Other 
Deemed equity 

Share options 
assets through 

component of 
contribution by 

outstanding 
T otal 

other Holding 
comprehensive 

equ ity 
Company 

account 

income 
- 3 652.97 1 461.22 465.74 304,616.66 
- - - - -
- 3,652.97 1,461.22 465.74 304 616.66 
- - - - 7,373.92 
- - - - -
- - - - 143.17 
- - - (65.80) (65.80) 
- - - (52.99) -
- 3,652.97 1,461.22 346.95 312,067.95 

. □ t>--OdSe. ~ ~-
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DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

(B) Other equity (refer note 22) (continued): 
(2) Previous reporting period: 

Reserves and Surolus 

Capital 
Particulars Securities 

premium 
redemption 

reserve 

Balance as at 1 Anril 2022 3 70.534.35 900.82 
Chane:es in accountine: oolirv I orior oeriod errors - -
Restated balance as at 1 Aoril 2022 370 534.35 900.82 
Loss for the year - -
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - -
Share based payment to employees - -
Transfer to provision for expected credit loss (97,500.00) -
Deferred tax on provision for expected credit loss 24,538.80 -
Transfer to retained earnine:s - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,97 .'>73.15 900.82 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements. 

This is the Standalone Statement of Cha11ge in Equity referred to in our report of even date. 

Reserve Fund 
(U/s 45-IC of 

RBI Act, 1934) 

13 270.01 

-
13 270.01 

-
-

-
-
-
-

13 270.01 

For and onJ,ehalf of the board of directors 

Surplus in the 
statement of 

profit and loss 

306.75 
-

306.75 
(14,369.82) 

727.49 
-
-

-
628.33 

(12,707.25) 

For Hem Sandeep & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

'Otfll_""" no.• ""907N 

,;.,1'Z anjh, K,::- A~Ny~t t 

Partner 
Membershio No.: 089011 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: : 17 May 2024 

Whole Time Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 03405178 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: : 17 May 2024 

Director 
DIN: 00366348 

Change in fair 
value of loan Other 

assets through 
other 

component of 

comprehensive 
equity 

income 
21.17 3,652.97 

- -
21.17 3 652.97 

- -
(21.17) -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- 3,652.97 

Deemed equity Share options 
contribution by 

Holding 
outstanding 

Company 
account 

1,461.22 
-

1,461.22 
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,461.22 

C 
ustagi 

ompa,~ ~~• 

~0~0 
31/ \'"\ (I) 

(/) 

4 999.86 
-

4 999.86 
-
-

(3,905.79) 
-
-

(628.33) 
465.74 

"%\ )§' 
~~~- · 
. * ~ 

Total 

395,147.15 
-

3,95,147.15 
(14,369.82) 

706.32 
(3,905.79) 

(97,500.00) 
24,538.80 

-
3,04,616.66 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

1. Company overview 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited ('the Company') is a public limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is 
engaged in the business of financing and investing related activities. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC­
ND') and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office i,; situated at 1/lE, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi West Delhi-110008. 

2. Basis of preparation 

(i) Statement of compliance 

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as per the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companiei; (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified under Section 133 of the Act, other 
relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and 
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended from time to time ('the RBI Directions, 2016') and notification for Implementation of 
Indian Accounting Standard vide circular RBI/2019-20/170 OOR(NBFq.CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 ('RBI Notification for 
Implementation of Ind AS') issued by RBI. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. Any application guidance / clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and 
when they are issued /applicable.The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

These standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on : 17 May 

2024 

(ii) Presentation of Standalone financial statements 
The Standalone Balance Sheet, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the 
format prescribed in the Division HI of Schedule Ill of the Act. The Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the 
requirements of Ind AS. A summary of the material accounting p,olicies and other explanatory information is in accordance with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as specified under Section 133, of the Act including applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. 

(iii) Historical cost convention 
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on goi11,g concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
Further, the standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share 
based payments which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. 

3. Summary of material accounting policies 

The standalone financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases summarised as below. These 
policies are applied consistently for all the periods presented in thE, standalone financial statements. 

a) Property, plant and equipment 

Recog11itio11 and initial measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met 
and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at 
the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's cairrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1:0 the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of 
profit and loss. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount o:r recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation metlw,t, useful lives a11d residual value) 

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant 
and equipment is provided on the straight line method overt.he useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Act. 

Asset class Useful life 
Comouter eauioment 3 vears 
Office eauioment 5 vears 
Furniture and fixtures 10 vears 

Vehicles 8 vears 
Servers and networks 6 vears 

Leasehold imorovements Lower of useful life of the asset or lease term 

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset is sold or disposed. 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year. 
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3. Summary of material accounting policies (continued) 

De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part: initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on d,e-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised. 

b) Intangible assets 

Recognition and initial measurement 
Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (other than those 
subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to 
its working condition for the intended use. 

Subse uent measurement (amortisation method, use I lives and residual' value) 
Asset class Useful life 
Software 4 - 10 years 
Intangible assets are amortised from the date when the assets are :available for use. The estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the intangible assets 
is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption of economic ]benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is 
revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any. 

The Company had developed a software that is used to enhance the company's business in e-wallet segment. Useful life of that software were estimated 4 
year basis the expected economic benefit from the software . However, the company has reassessed the expected pattern of consumption of economic 
benefit basis technical estimate of the software and expect benefits will flow to the Company till 10 years. 

c) Intangible assets under development 

Intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets under development and are carried at cost. Cost 
includes development cost, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure necessary to create, produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in 
the manner intended by management. These are recognised as assets when the Company can demonstrate following recognition requirements: 

The development costs can be measured reliably 
The project is technically and commercially feasible 
The Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project 
The Company has the ability to use or sell such intangible asi.et 
The asset will generate probable future economic benefits. 

Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. 

d) Revenue recognition 
Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts 

with customers. 
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115: 

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and 
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met. 

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service 
to the customer. 

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding a,mounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the 
Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obl.igation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

Step 5: Reco£nise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a pe'fforrnance obli2ation. 

The Company reco2nises revenue from the following sources: 

i. Interest i11come 
Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular 
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. Interest income are recognised by applying the effective interest 
method CEIR') to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. Calculation of the EIR includes all fees received or cost 
incurred that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition of a financial asset. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, 
therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Company recognises the interest to the extent recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, 
the Company reverts to recognising interest income. 

ii. Net gairl 011 fair value changes 
The Company designates certain financial assets for subsequent measurement at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains on 
derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCJ on net basis. 
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iii. Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date and no significant uncertainty as to 
collectability exists. 

1v. Ftts and am1mission income 
Revenue from fee and commission is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised as and when the Company 
satisfies the associated performance obligation in accordance with the identified contract with the customers and when there is no uncertainty in the 
ultimate realisation/ collection 

v. Income from assignment 
Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the 
direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known a!; the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows 
on execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss and 
correspondingly EIS receivable is recognised under head other financial asset . EIS evaluated and adjusted for ECL and expected prepayment. 

e) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying assets become ready 
for its intended use sale, are capitalised. Borrowing costs consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in coMection with the borrowing of 
funds. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial ;period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method. 

f) Taxation 

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except to the extent it recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Current tax comprises the tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 
previous years. Current tax is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate 
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after consider:ing uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Current tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in ,other comprehensive income or in equity). 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally- enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset 
and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deductible temporary 
differences to the extent it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This is assessed based on the 
Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax 
loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each ri!porbng date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates tlilat are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Cc,mpany expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the carry-mg amount of its assets 
and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and It is intended to 
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is 
recognised outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 

g) Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the 
period during which services are rendered by the employee. 

Other long-term employee benefits 

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences; to its employees which are in the nature of long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in 
respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to availed after one year from the balance sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial 
valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from 
past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined. 

Post-<>mployment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under: 

Defined contribution plans 

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance scheme. The contribution made by 
the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Defined benefit plans 

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to the 
employee's length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation (080) at the reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial 
gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income. 
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h) Share based payments 

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Dhani Services Limited ('Holding Company') Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). 
The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value of the employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding 
increase in equity. The vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the employee stock 
options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Holding Company's equity shares. 

i) Impairment of non-financial assets 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable amount 
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. lf at the reporting 
date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at 
the recoverable amount. 

j) Impairment of financial assets 

Loan assets 
The Company follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below: 

Stage 1 (1-30 days) includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the 
reporting date. 

Stage 2 (31-90 days) includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that do not have objective 
evidence of impairment. 

Stage 3 (more than 90 days) includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the 
product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PD) • The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per "Definition of default and credit• 
impaired" above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of 
counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of colla,teral or other credit support. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAO is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. For a revolving commitment, the 
Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of 
default, should it occur. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in determin,ing the 12-month and lifetime PO, EAO and LGO. The assumptions underlying the 
expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Other jimmcial assets 
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition. lf 
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recogniti,on, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected 
credit losses, else at an an,ount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that 
assessment, the Company compares tile risk of a default occurring; on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date witll the risk of a default occurring on 
the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and consider.s reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, 
that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date. 

Write--0ffs 
Financial assets are written off eitller partially or in their entirety t,:, tile extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are 
credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss. 

k) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments (certificate of deposits) that are readily 
convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to a,~ insignificant risk of changes in value. For cash flow statement purposes, cash and cash 
equivalents includes bank overdrafts tllat are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management. 



OHAN! LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

3. Summary of material accounti ng policies (continued) 

I) Equi ty investment in associate/subsidiaries 

Investments representing equity interest in associate or subsidiaries is measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements'. 

m) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation,. as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can 
be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are 
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is disclosed. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 
Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable 

estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

n) Financial instruments 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and 
are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below. 

Non-derivative financial assets 

Subsequent measurement 

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost: 

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the follo,wing conditions are met: 
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost 
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

il. Financial assets carried at fair value through other compre:hensive income (FVOCI): 

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if both the following condi.tions are met: 
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates tc, cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

FVOCI instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCT. Interest income 
and impairment gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. 

iii. Investments in equity instruments - Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or 
Joss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument by instrument basis, 
to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehtinsive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts presented 
in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity. Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit: or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 
investment. 

iv. Investments in mutual funds - Investments in mutual fund:; are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). 

De-recognition of financial assets 
Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) are derecognised (i.e. removed from the 
Company's balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive, the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and 
substantially a1J the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and 
recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 
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Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

De-rerognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial guarantee 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as financial liability at the time guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and 
subsequently measured at higher of: 

The amount of loss allowance (calculated as described in policy for impairment of financial assets) 
The amo_unt initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with principles of Ind AS. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

o) Earnings per equity share 

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting 
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity slhares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per equity share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost associated) for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

p) Segment reporting 

The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization a.nd management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate 
financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are regularly reviewed by the CODM ('chief operating decision maker') in 
deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. 

q) fQreign c11rrency 

Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the standalone financial statement of the Compa.ny are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
entity operates ('the functional currency'). The standalone financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (t), which is the 
Company's functional and presentation currency. 

Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign currency amounts at the date of 
the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at t:he balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non­
monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are ca.rried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or J'estatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially 
recorded, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. 

r) Classification of leases 
The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various premises. The assessment (including measurement) of the lease is based on several factors, 
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asse1t at end of lease term, lessee's option to extend/ terminate etc. After the commencement 
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to 
exercise or not to exercise the option to extend or to terminate. 

Rerognition and initial measurement 
At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at 
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to 
dismantle and remove the a.sset at the end of the lease (if any), amd any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any 
incentives received). 
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Subsequent measurement 
The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the 
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using 
the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the 
measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed paymen~i (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or 
rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any 
reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding 
The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the 
payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

s) Material management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Material management judgeme11ts 

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the future 
taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. 

Business model assessment - The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to 
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is 
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect tlhe performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the 
assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand 
the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of 
the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if 
it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several 
external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Expected credit loss ('ECL 1 - The measurement of expected cred,it loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost requires use of complex 
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). 
The Company makes significant judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit loss: 

Determ.iJ\ing criteria for significant increase in credit risk; 
Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward--looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated ECL; and 
Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL. 

Provisions - At each reporting date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of 
provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

Signiftca11t estimates 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting 
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in tlhese estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility 

of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumptions such as standard rates of 
inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future sala1·y increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount 
and the annual defined benefit expenses. 

Fa.ir value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are 
not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. 

t) New Accounting Pronouncement 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2:024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards 
applicable to the Company. 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the s tandalone financial s tatements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note - 4 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cashon hand 
Balances with banks 
- Current accounts 
- Fixed deposit with original maturity of three months or less (including interest acc111ed)' 
Cheques on hand 

' Including interest accrued t Nil lakhs (31 March 2023: t 1.58 lakhs) 

Note -5 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months (including interest accrued)' 

•Including interest accrued t 32.69 lakhs (31 March 2023: t 27.69 lakhs) 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

0.17 

4,173.90 

145.54 
4,319.61 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

4,420.98 
4A20.98 

Note: The amount under lien as security against overdraft facility availed and bank ,guarantee are as follows (included above in Note - 4 and Note - 5): 

Particulars 

Deposits pledged with banks for overdraft facilities availed by the Company 
Deposits pledged for District Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission 
Deposits pledged with bank against bank guarantees 
Deposits pledged with bank against corporate credit cards 

Note -6 

Loans 
Term Loans 
Secured 
Unsecured 
Total• Gross 
Less: impairment loss allowance 
Total - Net 

Secured by tangible assets 
Secured by other assets 
Unsecured 
Total • gross 
Less: impairment loss allowance 
Total- net 

Loans in India 
(i) Public sector 
(ii) Others 
Total - gross 
Less: impairment loss allowance 
Total - net 

Loans 
Term Loans 
Secured 
Unsecured 

Total • Gross 
Less: impairment loss allowance 

Total - Net 

Secured by tangible assets 
Secured by other assets 
Unsecured 
Total - gross 
Less: impaim,ent loss allowance 

Total- net 

Loans in India 
(i) Public sector 
(ii)Others 

Total - gross 
Less: impairment loss allowance 

Total - net 

At amortised cost 

13,877.17 
1,57,296.26 
1,71,173.43 

(4,576.92) 
1,66.596.51 

13,877.17 

1,57,296.26 
1,71,173.43 

(4,576.92) 
1,66,596.51 

1,71, 173.43 
1,71,173.43 

(4,576.92) 
1,66,596.51 

Al amortised cost 

26,263.87 
1,15,650.75 
1,41,914.62 

~191.w l, ,7 

26,263.87 

1, 15,650.75 
1,41,914.62 

(5,191.63) 
1,36,722.99 

1,41,914.62 
1,41,914.62 

(5,191.63) 
1,36,722.99 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

4,326.23 
0.03 

25.18 
69.54 

4420.98 

As at 31 March 2024 
Al fair value 

through other 
comprehensive 

income 

As al 31 March 2023 

At fair value 
through other 

comprehensive 
income 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

0.17 

10,366.20 
348.08 
310.90 

11 025.35 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

3199.08 
3199.08 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

3,456.56 

25.16 
65.44 

3,547.16 

Total 

13,877.17 
1,57,296.26 
1,71,173.43 

(4,576.92) 
1,66,596.51 

13,877.17 

1,57,296.26 
l,71,173.43 

(4,576.92) 
1,66,596.51 

1,71, 173.43 
1,71,173.43 

(4,576.92) 
1,66,596.51 

Total 

26,263.87 
1,15,650.75 
1,41,914.62 

;s,191.63) 
i 6,722.99 

26,263.87 

1,15,650.75 
1,41,914.62 

(5,191.63) 
1,36,722.99 

1,41,914.62 
1,41,914.62 

(5,191.63) 
1,36,722.99 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note - 6 
Loans (continued) 

(Bl Disclosure in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person that are 
(a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any term or period of repayment Nil (Previous year: Nil) 

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of financing by way of loans in the nature of consumer finance and loans against property (LAP), mortgage backed SME loans, and certain other 
purposes in India. The Company has assessed each of its loan portfolios and perfom,ed a comprehensive analysis of the staging or each of its borrower segments. Further, the Company has also 
analysed its outstanding exposures. Based on the above analysis, the Company has recorded a provision for in,pairment due to expected credit loss (ECL), of, 4,576.92 lakhs in respect of its 

loans and advances as at 31 March 2024 (Previous year: Rs. 5,191.63 lakhs). 

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company extends secured loans mainly backed by mortgage or property (residential or commercial). 

In addition to the above mentioned collateraL the Company holds other types of colllateral and credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralisation on other assets of the borrower, share pledge, 
guarantees or parent/holding companies, personal guarantees of promoters/proprietors, hypothecation or receivables via escrow account, hypothecation of receivables in other bank accounts 

etc. 

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets, but recovery efforts are made on delinquent loans through on-rolls collection executives, 
along with legal means to recover due loan repayments. Once contractual loan repai1ments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property may be initiated under the provisions of the 
SARFAESI Act 2002. Re-possessed property is disposed of in the manner prescribed ,in the SARF AESI act to recover outstanding debt. 

The Company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is ,recognised because of collateral at 31 March 2024. There was no change in the Company's collateral policy or 

collateral quality during the year. 

Note -7 
Investments 

As at 
31 March 2024 

Investments 
At amortised Al fair value through profit or At cost Total 

cost loss 

Mutual funds - 2,861.62 2,861.62 

Security receipts - 7,733.69 7,733.69 

Equity instruments (of subsidiary company) (refer footnote below) - - 99,115.34 99,115.34 

Total(A) - 10,595.31 99115.34 l.ll'l 710.65 

(i) Investments outside India - -
(ii) Investments in India - 10,595.31 99,115.34 1,09,710.65 

Total(B) - 10-~95.31 99115.34 1,()9,710.65 

Less: Allowance for Impairment loss IC\ -
Total IOI• IA\-'r' . 10 595.31 99115.34 1 M710.65 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

Investments 
At amortised At fair value through profit or 

At cost Tolal 
cost loss 

Mutual funds 335.18 335.18 

Debt securities (of subsidiary company) 9999.78 9999.78 

Security receipts - 32 610.38 32 610.38 
Equity instruments (of subsidiary company) (refer footnote below) - 93129.51 93129.51 

Total(A) 9 999.78 32 945.56 93129.51 1.36 074.85 

(i) Investments outside India - - -
(ii) Investments in India 9999.78 32 945.56 93129.51 136074.85 

Total (B) 9999.78 32 945.56 93129.51 1.36 074.85 

Less: Allowance for lmnairment loss In 
Total IOl ~ IAl-lCl 9 999.78 32 945.56 93129.51 1.36 074.85 

Notes: 
7.1 Equity investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost as per the provisions of Ind AS 27 on 'Separate Financial Slatements' 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note - 7 Investments (continued) 
7.2. Equity instruments includes the following investment in equity shares of subsidi.iries 

Name of the Subsidiaries 

TranServ Limited 
[No. of equity share 147,29,129 (31 March 2023: 6,479,129) lace value t 10 each) 
lndiabulls Distribution Services Limited 
(No. of equity share 2,35,075 (31 March 2023: 308,220) lace value , 10 each) 
lndiabulls Investment Advisors Limited 
[No. of equity share 355,500,000 (31 March 2023: 355,500,000) face value , 10 each) 

Tol•l investment in ecuifv shares of subsidiaries 

Note - 8 
Other financial assets 
Receivable on assigned loans 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 
Net receivable on assigned loans 

Security deposits 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 
Net Security depasits 
Advances to employees 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 
Net Advance to Employees 

Others receivables 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 
Net Other Receivable 

m,is sp<ice has bee11 i11le11lio11ally left bla11k) 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

29,244.39 

34,320.95 

35,550.00 

99,115.34 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

1,512.63 
(905.31) 
607.32 
58.78 
(11.73) 
47.05 

170.77 
(148.10) 

22.67 
677.04 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

12,579.39 

45,000.12 

35,550.00 

93,129.51 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

111.99 
(1.79) 

110.20 
1,795.98 
(102.00) 

1,693.98 
100.66 

(8.43) 
92.23 

302.19 

302.19 
2198.60 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar,:h 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note • 9 
Current tax assets (net) 
Advance income tax/tax deducted at source 
[Net of provision for taxation] 

Note -10 
Deferred tax assets (net) 
Deferred Tax Assets 

• Impairment loss allowance 
• Disallowance under Section 40A(7) of Uw Income-tax Act, 1961 
• Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
• Dereco11:ntion of financial instruments measured under amortised coi;t 
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
-Share based payments 
• Unused tax losses carried forward 
Total(A) 

Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities 

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
• Depreciation and amortisation 
Total (Bl 

Deferred Tax Assets(Net) (A-Bl 

Movement in deferred tax assets 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets 
- Impairment loss allowance 
• Disallowance under Section 40A(7) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
• Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
• Share based payments 
• Unused tax losses carried forward 
- Derecogntion of financial instruments measured under amortised coi;t 

Deferred tax liabilities 
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
- Depreciation and amortisation 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred tax assets 
• Impairment loss allowance 
• Disallowance under Section 40A(7) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
• Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
• Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
- Share based payments 
• Unused tax losses carried forward 
- Derecogntion of financial instruments measured under amortised coi;t 

Deferred tax liabilities 
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income 
• Depreciation and amortisation 

Deferred tax assets(net) 

As at Recognised 
1 April 2023 in profit 

and loss 

1,334.87 4.50 
306.00 (219.21) 
150.24 (137.22) 
121.50 4.19 
117.22 (29.90) 

45,260.16 (2,278.67) 
103.52 (103.52) 

(24.25) 42.88 
(181.52) 166.87 

47,187.74 (2,550.07) 

Asal Recognised 
1 April 2022 in profit 

and loss 

9,164.00 (32,367.93) 
262.07 288.61 
129.60 20.64 
410.09 (288.59) 

1,258.36 (1,141.14) 
6,574.57 38,685.59 
(279.93) 383.45 

(33.38) 9.13 

(7.12) 

(442.70) 261.18 
17,035.56 5.850.94 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

6,091.78 17,163.85 

6 091.78 17,163.85 

As at Asal 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1,339.37 1,334.87 
38.64 306.00 
13.02 150.24 

103.52 
125.69 121.50 

18.63 
87.32 117.22 

42,981.49 45,260.16 
44,604.16 47,393.51 

(24.25) 
{14.65) (181.52) 
(14.65) (205.77) 

44589.51 47187.74 

Recognised in 
other 

Recognised 
As at 

comprehensive 
in Equity 

31 March 2024 

income 

1,339.37 
(48.15) 38.64 

13.02 
125.69 
87.32 

42,981.49 

18.63 
(14.65) 

(48.15) 44,589.51 

Recognised in 
other 

Recognised 
As at 

comprehensive 31 March 2023 
income 

in Equity 

24,538.80 1,334.87 
(244.68) 306.00 

150.24 
121.50 
117.22 

45,260.16 
103.52 

(24.25) 

7.12 

(181.52) 
(237.56) 24,538.80 47,187.74 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the stuuLdont financial statements for the year ended 31 Much 2024 
(AU amounlS are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -11 (a): Property, plant and equipment 

ParticlllillS 

Freehold land 
Computers 
Server and networks 
Office Equipment 
Furniture 
Vehicles 
Total 

Freehold land 
Com puters 
Servers and networks 
Office equipment 
Furniture 
Vehicles 
Total 

Note -11 (b) : Right-of-use assets 

Buildinv,s 

Buildin~s 

Notes: 

Asat 
1 AEril 2023 

12.98 
3,988.10 
1,135.86 
1,n4.10 
4,789.00 

59.43 
11,709.47 

Asat 
1 Al?ril 2022 

12.98 
5,925.81 

948.95 
1,806.24 
4,930.10 

~ 
13,705.74 

Asal 
1 Al!ril 2023 

13,107.80 

Asal 
1 AEril 2022 

27,231.63 

Gross Block 

Addltions Dispow~ 
adjustment 

3.61 214.67 
3.52 
8.06 66.79 
8.08 242.14 

126.31 
149.58 523.60 

Gross Block 

Additions Disposa~ 
adjustment 

184.70 2. 122.41 
208.17 21.26 
82.82 164.96 

128.74 269.84 
22.23 

604.43 2,600.70 

Gross Block 

Additions Dispos~ 
ildjustment 

1,671.89 3,662.11 

Additions Disp~ 
adjustment 

629.08 14,752.91 

a) There are no immovable properties whose liUe deeds are not held in the name of the Company. 
b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use AsselS). 

Asal Asat 
31 March 2024 l AEril 2023 

12.98 
3,m.04 3,107.35 
1,139.38 364.47 
1,665.37 1,052.39 
4,554.94 1,493.07 

185.74 32.90 
11,335.45 6~.18 

Asal Asat 
31 March 2023 1 Al?ril 2022 

12.98 
3,988.10 3,265.54 
1,135.86 195.58 
1,n4.10 766.63 
4,789.00 1,073.80 

59.43 33.96 
11 709.47 S~S.51 

Asat Asal 
31 March 2024 1 Al!ril 2023 

11,117.58 9,133.85 

Asal As at 
31 Much2023 1 AEril 2022 

13,107.80 10,198.87 

Accumubted deerec:i.ation Net Block 

Additions 0.letion Asat Asal Asat 

31 March2024 31 Muc.h 2024 31 March 2023 

12.98 12.98 
567.45 208.46 3,466.34 310.70 880.75 
189.82 554.29 585.09 771.39 
276.09 57.n 1,270.76 394.61 671.71 
481.98 107.09 1,867.96 2,686.98 3,295.93 

12.66 45.56 140.18 26.53 
1,:?28.00 373.27 7,204.91 4,130.54 5,659.29 

Accumulated dee:reciation Net Block 

Additions Deletion Asat As al Asat 

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

12.98 12.98 
919.35 1,077.54 3,107.35 880.75 2,660.27 
176.46 7.57 364.47 771.39 753.37 
358.88 73.12 1,052.39 671.71 1,039.61 
503.18 83.91 1,493.07 3,295.93 3,856.30 

8.18 9.24 32.90 26.53 47.70 

\966,05 1~1.38 6~.18 5,659.29 8,370.23 

Accumulated de,ereciation Net Block 

Additions Deletion As at Asat Asal 
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1110.86 1,774.91 8,469.80 2,647.78 3,973.95 

Additions Deletion Asal Asal Asal 
31 March 2023 :Jl March 2023 31 March 2022 

2,075.17 3,140.19 9,133.85 3,973.95 17,032.76 

c) There are no oroceedine.s have ~n initiated or oendina av.a inst the comoanv for hold ine: anv benami orooertv under the Benami Transactions (Prohjbition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

□~oSer., 
~ C'~ 
0 <JI 
..J r 
• ~-~ §' ~- . 
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OI-IANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the yeu ended 31 March 2024 
(All amoun1s are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note • 11 (c): Intangible Asset under O __ ev""e""l"'o"'m=•n"'t'---------~-~~------------- __________________________ -----~-=~-----
Gross Block Accumulated de.e_redation Net Block 

Asal 
1 AJ!.ril 2023 

Additions 

lntan2,ible Asset under Development 317.19 43.23 

Asat 
1 AJ!.ril 2022 

Additions 

Intan~ible Asset under Development 462.18 270.55 

Disdosure of aging schedule of lntm$tible as~ts under development: 

Intangible assets under development 

Software 
Total 

lnt-angible usets under development 

Softwa.re 
Total 

Capitalisation/ 
adiustme.nt 

360.42 

Capitalisation/ 
adiustment 

415.54 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

As at 
31 March 2023 

317.19 

Asal 
1 AJ!.ril 2023 

As at 
01-04-2022 

Additions Deletion 

Additions Deletion 

Less tltan 1 vei.l 1-2veus I 
• I I 
. I . I 

Less than 1 ve.u 1•2 yeus I 
209.28 I 107.911 
209.281 107.91 I 

There are no intan)\ible assets under development which are overdue as per the orijtinal completion plan of the intangible assets under development at the balance sheet date. 

Nole -11 (d) : Intangible •ssels Gross Block Accumulated deereciation 
Asat Additions Disposals{ 

1 AJ!ril 2023 ildiustme.nt 
Software 10,953.34 360.42 ---Total 10,953.34 360.42 

Asal As at Additions Deletion 
31 March 2024 1 Al!ril 2023 

11,313.76 7,354.13 1,028.17 
11,313.76 7J54.13 1~.17 

Asal Additions Disposals{ 
1 Al!ril 2022 adjustment 

Software 10,614.20 339.14 

Asal Asat Additions Deletion 
31 March 2023 1 A2ril 2022 

10,953.34 6,258.39 1,095.74 
Total 10._614.20 339.14 10,953.34 6~.39 1095.74 

Refer note no. 38 of notes to financial statements for disclosure of capital commitments. 

Asal Asal 
31 Man:h 2024 31 Man:h 2024 

As at As .it 
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 

317.19 

As at 31 March 2024 
2-3 vean I More than 3 vears I 

I • I 
I • I 

AS at 31 Man:h 2023 
2-3vears I More than 3 vears I 

. I I 
I I 

Asat 
31 Ma.rch 2023 

317.19 

Asal 
31Man:h~ 

462.18 

Total 
. 
. 

Total 
317.19 
317.19 

Net Block 
Asal ASJl Asal 

31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
8,382.30 2,931.46 3,599.21 
8,382.30 2,931.46 3.!!99.21 

Asat As•t Asat 
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

7,354.13 3,599.21 4,355.81 
7,354.13 3,599.21 4,355.31 

~o\>-0d Se,.~ • 
(0 C> 3 i, 
. - r c.. -· 

~. / -



OHANl LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note •12 
Other non-financial assets 
Prepaid expenses 
Balance with government authorities 
Capital advances 
Advances to suppliers 

Note -13 
Trade payables 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 45 (a)) 
Total outstanding dues o( creditors other than micro enterprises and sm21II enterprises 

131 T de P ,vables a•f •• sched le .. ra a 10 u 

Particulars Outstanding for following 
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 

(i)MSME 
(ii) Others 282.21 536.30 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME 
(iv) Oisouted dues• Others 

Particulars uutstane11.02 tor ro11owmcr 

,,~,,.... 
CiiJUthers 

1111 DlSt>Uted dues- 11..,, .... !\A ... 

(IV lSDUlPd. nues- l 11hers 

Note -14 
Other Pay•ble 

Less than 1 vear 

828.01 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 45 (b)) 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smc,ll enterprises 

Note -15 
Debt securities (•t amortised cost) 

(A) Secured Loans 
Non• convertible debentures (refer note 15.1 and 15.2 below) 
Total 

(B) Unsecured Loans 

Out of above 
In India 
Outside India 

Total 

Notes: 
151 SK"ured redeemable non convertible debentures include· 

Interest rattjEffective yield 
Face value 

(Amount in f) 

10.50% 1 >:nil 
10.50%/Effective vield) 1 000.00 
10.03% 1 000.00 
10.13% 1000.M 
10.61% 1 000.00 
10.60% <Effective uield' 1 000.00 
10.04% 1 000.00 
10.52% 1 000.00 
10.50% <Effective vieldl 1 000.00 
11.00% J""'1,M 

11.00 %<Effective vield) 1 000.00 
10.49% 1 000.00 
11.00% 1000.00 
11.0, %/Effective vield) 1 000.00 
10.49% 1 000.00 
Total 

Issue date Redemption date 

17-Mau-2022 17-Mav-2024 
17-Mav,,2022 17-Mav-2024 
17-Ma~-2022 17-Mav-2024 

27-lun .. 2019 27•1un•2024 
27-lun .. 2019 27-lun-2024 
27:run .. 2019 27-lun-2024 
6-Seo,2019 6-Seo-2024 
6-Seo-2019 6-Sen-2024 
6-Ser>,2019 6-Sen-2024 
2-Feb-2022 31-lan-2025 
2-Feb-2022 31-lan-2025 
2-Feb-2022 31-lan-2025 

17,Mau,.2022 16-Mav-2025 
17-Mav .. 2022 16-Mav-2025 
17-Mav .. 2022 16-Mav,2025 

1-2 vears 

201.90 

Number of 
NCDs 

17125 
11-'Y7 
42 615 

156425 
1 26 043 

41 232 
37907 

118 087 
9656 

113 954 
90192 

2 56028 
71.492 
38•82 

1• .. 

Asat 
J1 March 2024 

669.45 
1,718.61 

58.55 
2,446,61 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

943.88 
943.88 

As at 31 March 2024 
eriods from due date of oavment 

2.3 vears More than 3 vears 

125.28 0.09 

As at 31 March 2023 
,.,.rtods from due 

2-3 vears 
ate of navment 

More than 3vears 

0,09 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

4,658.01 
4 658.01 

Asal 
31 March 2Q24 

13,728.76 
13,728.76 

13,728.76 

13 728.76 

As at 31 March 2024 

Impact of interest 
Amou.nt 

accrued and Ind AS 

171.25 6.28 
118.47 24.10 
426.15 0.66 

1564.25 0.56 
1 260.43 99.37 

412.32 252.32 
379.07 2.44 

1180.87 69.03 
96.56 55.60 

1139.54 11 .85 
901.92 221.26 

2 560.28 3.28 
714.92 58.95 
384.82 77.56 

1 548.35 (13,70) 
12.859.20 869.56 

Asal 
31 Marrh 2023 

959.32 
1,661.88 

36.04 
382.39 

~,039.63 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

1,030.00 
1~.00 

Total 

943.88 

Total 

1 030.00 

Asat 
31 Maa:h 2023 

4,671.16 
4,§71.16 

Asat 

31 Marth 2023 

32.025.44 
32 025.44 

32,025.44 

32,025.44 

Total outstanding 
amount 

177.53 

ill 
664.64 
381.51 

1249.90 
152.16 

1151.39 
1123.18 
7 .'vl."\,56 

773.87 
462.38 

1 ~-.65 
13 728.76 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Noles lo the standalone financial slalemenls for lhe year ended 31 Manch 2024 
(AU amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless s ta led otherwise) 

Note -1S 
Debi s«urilies (al amortised cosl) (continued) 

lnleresl ral.;Effective yield 
Face value 

Issue dat·e Redemption dale 
(Amount in t) 

10.00 1'1Effecliv• vi•ld\ 1 000.00 
17-Mav-!I. 

22-Mav-2023 

10.501' 1 000.00 2-Feb-, 2-Feb-2024 
10.501'1Effective vieldl I 000.00 2 ·-· 2-Feb-2024 
10.031' 1 000.00 2-Fet>- 2-Feb-2024 
10.501' 1 000.00 8-Mar--2019 8-Mar-2024 
11.001' 1 000.00 8-Mar--2019 8-Mar-2024 
11.001' IF.ff..-liv• vield1 1 000.00 8-Mar--2019 8-Mar-2024 
10.501' 1 000.00 17-Mav--2022 17-Mav-2024 
10.501'/Eff,clive viddl 1 000.00 17-Mav--2022 17-Mav-2024 
10.03% 1 000.00 17-Mav--2022 17-Mav-2024 
10.131' 1 000.00 27-Tun--2019 27-Jun-2024 
10.61" 1 000.00 27:fun--2019 27-Jun-2024 
10.60% !Effective vield' 1 000.00 27-Tun--2019 27-Jun-2024 
10.04% 1 000.00 6-Sen--2019 6-Seo-2024 
10.52% 1 000.00 6-Seo--2019 6-Sen-2024 
10.50% !Effective vield' 1 000.00 6-Sen-2019 6-Seo-2024 
11.00% 1 000.00 2-Feb--2022 31-lan-2025 
11 .00 %/Effective vieldl 1 000.00 2-Feb--2022 31-Jan-2025 
10.49% 1 000.00 2-Feb--2022 31 -Jan-2025 
11.00% 1 000.00 17-Mav--2022 16-Mav-2025 
11 .01 %1Efwtlv• vi•ldl 1 000.00 17-Mav--2022 16-Mav-2025 
10.49% 1 000.00 17-Mav--2022 16-Mav-2025 
Total 

As at 31 March •11 

Number of lmpacl of interest Total outstanding 

NCDs 
Amount 

accrued and Ind AS amount 

269344 2 693.44 213.16 2.906.60 
38.820 388.20 2.61 390.81 
47 849 478.49 51.86 530.35 
70965 709.65 77_05, 702.60 

4 70084 4 700.84 23.89 4 724.73 
260712 2 607.12 14.10 2 621.22 
193 776 1937.76 1011.19 2.948.95 
367125 3 671.25 267.78 3939.03 

11967 119.67 8.17 127.84 
42 '-le; 426.15 76.181 419.97 

156425 1 564.25 (]8.321 1 545.93 
1 28003 1 280.03 86.44 1.366.47 

43856 438.56 194.24 632.80 
37907 379.07 11.101 377.97 

118099 1180.99 66.89 1 247.88 
10.362 103.62 43.54 147.16 :a 1139.54 2.60 1142.14 

916.79 • 1 016.97 
2 560.28 2521.46 

71 714.92 766.50 
40270 402.70 429.89 

1 Yx-1..,. 1 548.35 130.18' 1.518.17 
29961.67 2,,06.1.77 32025.44 

15.2 Non--convertibJe debentures are secured by way of first ranking pari•passu charge on the current assets (including investments) of the Company, both present and future; and on 
present and future loan assets or the Company, including all monies neceivable for the principal amount and interest thereon to the extent as stated in the respective information 
memorandum/offering documents/prospectus. Further, the Company has maintained asset cover as stated in the respective information memorandum/offering: 
documents/ prospectus. 

Note -16 
Borrowin11,5 (other than debt securities) at amortised cost 
(A) Secured Loans 

(i) Other loans 
-Securitisation liabilities 

Total(A) 

[8) Unsecured Loans 
(i) Loan taken from other 

Total(B) 

Total (A+B) 

Out of above 
In India 
Outside India 

Total 

11\ere is no continuin~ default in the repayment of the aforesaid loans or interest as at the balance sheet date. 

(1"1,is space l,ns b«,1 ;,,te11tio11nlly ltft bl1111k) 

Asat 

31 Mw:h 2024 

3,768.84 
3 768.84 

3 26884 

3,768.84 

3.768.84 

Asat 

n Macrh2023 

6,294.91 
6294.91 

900.00 
900.00 

7194 91 

7,194.91 

7194.91 



OHANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes 10 the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

(i} Securitisation liabilities: 

In the course of its finance activity, the Company makes transfers of fimmcial assets, where legal rights to the cash nows from lhe asset are passed to the counterparty and where the 
Company retains the rights to the cash nows but assumes a responsibility to transfer them to thecounterparty. Securitisation liabilities includes following arrangements: 

Name of Counter Par As at 31 March 2024 sat 31 March 2023 
India Retail Pool O rtunities Trust 2 3,768.84 6 294.91 
Total 3,768.84 6 294.91 

(a) Intere$l rate on securilisation liabilities is at a floating rate of 13.50% per annum which equal to long term reference rate of Adityil 8irla Finance Limited less the spread of 6.95~ . 
(31 March 2023: 13.30~) 
(b) The above mentioned amount of Securtisation liabilities is considered after netting off Investment (Minimum retention amount) of t 1,688.07 lakhs made by the Company in the 
Securtlsation deal 

(i) Loan taken from other: 
31 March 2024: Nil 
31 March 2023: The Joan is repayable on demand with maximum tenure c,f 12 months i..e. February 2024 and carries Jnterest rate of 12 percent per annum. 

Note • 17 
Lease liabilities 
Finance lease obli,gations (refer note - 37) 

Note -18 
Others financial liabilities 
Interest accrued on assigned loan 
Unpaid matured debentures and interest accrued 
Others 

• Amount payable on assigned/ securitised loans 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

3,079.02 
3.Q2202 

Asal 

3J Matth 2024 

189.44 
83.88 

Asat 
31 March 2023 

4,564.58 

4 564 58 

Asal 
31 Macrh 2023 

905.29 
71.80 

____ _;2.:,:729=·"'c:- 6,181.07 
____ .. 3:i:ffi1=-29- 7158.16 

18.1. Amount payable on assigned/securitised loans represent the amount collected on sale down portfolio where cash flows are require to pass to the counterparty either through 
direct assignn\ent or pass through credit. 

Note -19 
Provisions 
Provision for employee benefits 
Provision for gratuity (refer note -36 6) 
Provision for compensated absences (refer note -36C) 

Noie -20 
Other non-financial liabilities 
Other Advances 

Advance from customers 
Others 

Statutory dues payable 

(l"/1is spai:, l,ns btt11 i111,111io11nl/y kft blank) 

Asat Asat 
n Marrh2024 31 March 2023 

329.26 1,215.83 
109.22 596.95 

438·48 1&;!2.78 

Asal Asat 

31 Ma«h2024 31 Ma«h 2023 

480.92 567.37 

274.52 401.87 
755.44 ~.24 



OHAN! LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounlS are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless slaled otherwise) 

Nole - 21 
Share capital 

A. Aulhorised 
Equily shares of face value of~ 10 each 
Preference shares of face value oft 10 each 

8. Issued, subscribed and paid up 
Equity shares of face value of t 10 each 

Asal 
31 March202 :=4'----­

Number 

7,70,00,000 
85,00,000 

85500,000 

6, 11,88,000 
6.11,88,()()() 

Amounl 

7,700.00 
850.00 

8,550-00 

6118.80 
6118.80 

C Reconciliation o( the shares outstanding at the be-~inning and at the •end of the reporting year 

Equjty shares 

Opening balance al lhe beginning of the year 
Add: issued during lhe vear 
OulStandinR at lhe end of lhe year 

D. Termslrilthts attached 10 equity shares 

For the year ended 
31 March202 ==4'----­

No. oC shares Amount 

6,11,88,000 6,118.80 

6.11.88.000 § 11§,80 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

Number 

7,70,00,000 
85,00,000 

8.55J)()s999 

6,11,88,000 
6,111§,()()() 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

No. o( shares 

6,11,88,000 

6.11.88.000 

Amount 

7,700.00 
850.00 

8.550.00 

6118.80 
6,118.80 

Amount 

6,118.80 

6118.80 

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of•? 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vole per share. In the evenl of liquidation of 
the company, the holders of equity shares wiH be entitled to received remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The dtstr-ibution will ~ in 
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder. 

E. Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

ParticuJars 
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

No. of shares ¾ of holding No. of shares 0/, of holding 

Ohani Services Limited and its nominees 
(Holding Companv) 

F. Shares held by promolers: 

6 .. 11,88,000 

As at 31 March 2024 

1001' 6, 11,88,000 1001' 

As at 31 March 2023 
Particulars 

No. of shares 
O/ GOf 

__!:1olding 
% Change during 

the year 
No. of shares %of holding 

% Change during 
the year 

Dhanj Services Llmited and its nominees 
(Holdin11: Companvl 

6, 11,88,000 1001' 6,11,88,000 100ll\ 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above 
shareholding represent.s both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

G. The Company has not issued any bonus shares during the current year and five years immediately preceding current year. 

H. There are no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment bein:g received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way or bonus i.ssue during the last five years. 

l. The Company has not bough I back any shares during lhe current year a1nd five years immediately preceding current year. 



DHANT LOANS ANO SERVICES trMITTD 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -22 

Other equity 

Statutory reserves 
Securities premium 
Capital redemption reserve 
Share options outstanding account 
Retained earnings 
Deemed equity contribution by Holding Company 
Other component of equity 

Nature and purpose of other reserve: 

Statutory reserves (Reserves Fund) 

Asal 

31 March 2Q24 

14,744.79 
2,97,573.15 

900.82 
346.95 

(6,611.95) 
1,461.22 
3,652.97 

3,12,062 95 

Asal 

3J Macrh 2023 

13,270.01 
2,97,573.15 

900.82 
465.74 

(12,707.25) 
1,461.22 
3,652-97 

3&:l&J6£,6 

The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 4,5(IC) of Reserve Ba:nk of India Act, 1934. This is a restricted reserve and no appropriation can be made from lh.is reserve fund 
except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India. 

Securities premium 

Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The uccount can be utilised in accordance with the provisions or the Companies Act 2013. 
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has utilised/ applied an amount of Rs. n,961.20 lakhs (net of deferred tax) from the outstlndlng balance in the securities premium 
account for creating a provision for impairment losses on financial instruments, instead or debiting the same to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, which is not in strict 
accordance with the applicable provisions of Indian Accounting Standards and other applicable regulations. The Reserve 8ank of India issued a communication to the industry dated 20 
June 2022 which impacted one of the Company's products/services ort',?red to iLS customers. Consequently, the Company, on a conservative basis, has created the above mentioned 
provision in respect or any future., unanticipated losses which may arise o,n account of the impact of the above RBI communication. 

CJpital redemption reserve 

The same had been created in accordance with provisions or the Companies Act 2013 on account of redemption or preference shares. 

Share options outstanding account 

The reserve is used to recognise the lair value of the options issued to employees of the Company under Holding Company's ESOP's plan. 

Chan~e in fair value of loan assets through other comprehensive income 

Th.is reserve has been created against change in business model for loan against property ("LAP"), business instalments loan and personal loan from • hold to collect" to "hold to collect 
and sale". 

Deemed equity contribution by Holding Company 

The reserve has been created against initial measurement of financial gua.rantee (given by Holding Company) at fafr value. 

Other component o( equity 

The reserve has been created against exercised amount of employee stock option (issued by Holding Company). 

n 'l1is spaa lw bn,11 i11t,11tio,1ally kfl b/a11k) 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -23 
Interest income 
On financial assets measured at amortised cost 
Interest on loans 
Interest on deposits with banks 
Other interest income 

- Unwinding of interest income 
On financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss 
Interest income from investments 

- Bonds 
- Compulsory convertible debentures 

Note -24 
Fees and commission income 
Subscription income and Processing fee 
Foreclosure fees and other related income 

Note -25 
Net gain on fair value changes 
Net gain/(Joss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
On trading portfolio 

- Investments 
(B)Others 
Profit/ (Loss) on sale/ redemption of investments 
Total Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 
Fair Value Changes 

- Realised 
- Unrealised 

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 

Note -26 
Other income 
Liabilities written back 
Provision written back 
Charge back for common expenses 
Gain on modification/ de recognition of leases 
Interest income on income - tax refund 
Miscellaneous Income 

Note -27 
Finance costs 
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Interest on borrowings 
Interest on debt securities 
Other interest expenses 

- Interest on securitisation transactions 
- Interest on taxes 
- Interest on lease liability 

-Others 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

17,912.99 
212.94 

62.14 

540.97 
18729.04 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

1,010.61 
7,664.07 
8 674.68 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

1,314.68 
499.73 
13.33 

243.84 
2,279.09 

3.67 
4,354.34 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

27.36 
2,885.06 

658.82 

448.12 
11.90 

4,031.26 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

11,885,86 
820.58 

153.53 

116.60 
999.98 

13976.55 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

10,032.10 
9,597.90 

19 630.00 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

1,727.93 

1 727.93 

1,714.89 
13.04 

1,727.93 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

2,565.44 
3,109.70 

9.20 
1,479.06 

45.40 
7 208.80 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

4,533.37 
5,169.72 

39.37 
38.72 

1,000.74 
31.48 

10!!13.40 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Man:h 2024 
(AU amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

For the year ended 
31 Man:h 2024 

For the year ended 
31 Man:h 2023 



DHANl LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year enoded 31 March 2024 
(All amow,ts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note • 28 

Net (gain)/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
On trading portfolio 

- Investments 
(B) Others 
(Profit)/Loss on sale/redemption of investments 
Total Net loss on fair value changes 
Fair Value Changes 

• Realised 
• Unrealised 

Total Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 

Note -29 
Net Loss on derecognition of financial instruments under a,mortised cost category 
Loss on derecognition of Corporate guarantee 

Note .30 
Impairment on financial instruments 
lmpainnent allowance on financial assets 
Loans written off (Net of recoveries)' 
Impairment allowance on interest spread on assigned assets 

• Net of bad debts recovered of f 1685.5 lakhs (Previous year: f 13,382.81 lakhs) 

Note -31 
Employee benefits expense 
Salaries and wages 
Contribution to Provident fw,d and Other fw,ds (refer note-:36) 
Share based payments to employees 
Staff welfare expenses 

Note • 32 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Amortisation on intangible assets 
Amortisation on right-of-use assets 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

(851.08) 

995.50 
144.42 

117.99 
26.43 

144.42 

For the year ended 
J1 March 2024 

For the year ended 
J1 March 2024 

400.04 
351.29 

(1.79) 

749:54 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

7,551.05 
144.78 
(65.80) 
64.88 

7 694.91 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

1,528.00 
1,028.17 
1,110.86 
3 667.03 

For the year ended 
J1 March 2023 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

36.49 
36.49 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

18,746.01 
(10,985.88) 

(22.64) 
7.737.49 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

26,488.47 
503.41 

(3,905.79) 
113.60 

23199.69 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

1,966.04 
1,095.74 
2,075.17 
5136.95 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -33 
Other Expenses 
Repair and maintenance 
Insurance 
Communication expenses 
Lease line Charges 
Printing and stationery 
Lease rent 
Professional charges 
Auditors' remuneration (refer note (a) below) 
Rates and taxes 
Electricity expenses 
Business promotion 
Office maintenance 
Travelling expenses 
Software expenses 
Bank charges 
Web hosting charges 
Director's fee, allowances and expenses 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Note 33(a): Payment to statutory auditors: (including goods and services tax) 

Statutory audit and limited review 
Sub Total 
CST 
Total 

- in coru,ection with issue of securities (including CST)• 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

133.72 
0.69 

166.99 
92.80 
30.26 

352.98 
1,353.35 

38.15 
45.49 

216.31 
541.29 
275.62 
135.94 

1,m.47 
116.22 
60.92 
16.35 

108.24 
89.12 

5.ii!6.91 

!'or the year ended 
31 March 2024 

35.00 
35.00 

3.15 
38.15 

•recognised as transaction cost in computing effective interest rate adjustment for the respective borrowings. 

Note-34 

Tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax credit 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

2,550.07 
2.550.07 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

414.20 
4.72 

367.96 
92.50 
81.89 

544.64 
3,185.95 

38.15 
114.43 
346.03 

3,519.34 
588.26 
607.16 

4,706.66 
394.89 
60.72 
30.52 

no.09 
76.58 

15.884.69 

for the year ended 
31 March 2023 

35.00 
35.00 
3.15 

38.15 

5.45 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

(44.67) 
(5,850.94) 
{5.895-61) 

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation lo expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Company is 25.17% 
(31 March 2023: 25.17%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows: 

Accounting profiV(loss) before tax expense 
Income tax rate 
Expected tax expense 

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense 
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 
Tax impact on items exempt under income tax 
Income chargeable under capital gain (difference of tax rates) 
Others 
Tax expense 

Note-35 
Earnings per equity share 
Profit/ (loss) available for equity shareholders 
Nominal value of equity share (f) 
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basic earnings 1per share 
Effect of dilution: 
Weighted-average number of equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share (() 
Diluted earnings per share (t) 

9,923.99 
25.17% 

2,497.67 

13.34 
14.47 
45.00 

(20.41) 
2,550.07 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

7,373.92 
10.00 

6,11,88,000 

6,11,88,000 
12.05 
12.05 

(20,265.43) 
25.17% 

(5,100.40) 

150.48 
(98.50) 

(431.60) 
(415.59) 

/5.895.611 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

(14,369.82) 
10.00 

6,11,88,000 

6,11,88,000 
(23.48) 
(23.48) 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(AU amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -36 
Employee benefits 
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 on Employee Benefit as under : 

A Defined contribution plans 
The Company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at predeterrnined rates to a registered provident fund administered by the Government of India, which invests 
the funds in permitted securities. Both the Company and employee,, make predetermined contributions to the Provident Fund. The contributions are normally based 
on a certain proportion of the employee's salary. Amount of~ 144.71! lakh (31 March 2023 ~ 503.41 lakh) pertaining to employers' contribution to provident and other 
fund is recognised as an expense and included in 'Employee benefits expense' in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

B Defined benefit plans 
Gratuity 
The Company has a defined benefit unfunded gratuity plan. Every e,mployee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 
liability of Gratuity is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. 

Ris s associated w th olan 1 rovisions 

Salary increases 
Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase 

k 

the liabilitv. 

Investment risk 
If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last 

valuation date can impact the liability. 

!Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subseaue:nt valuations can increase the olan's liabilitv. 
Mortalitv &disabilitv Actual deaths & disabilitv cases nrovine lower or hi~her than assumed in the valuation can imoact the liabilities. 

Withdrawals 
Actual withdrawals proving higher or· lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can 

imoact Plan's liabilitv. 

(J) Amount recoo-nised in the balance sheet is as under: 

Particulars 

Present value of obligation 
Fair value of olan assets 
Net oblioation recovnised in balance sheet as orovision 

(ii) Amount re<:oenised in the statement of nrofit and loss is as under: 

Particulars 

Current service cost 
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 
Interest income on nlan assets 
Net imnact on nrofitl1oss lbefore t•xl 

(iii) Amount reco 

Particulars 

ised in the olher com rehensive income: 

(iv) Movement in the nresent value of defined benefit oblioation reco,mised in the balance sheet is as under: 

Particulars 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 
Acquisition adjustment 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Past service cost including curtailment gain!V'}osses 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic <1ssumption 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assuenption 
Actuarial l~ain\/loss on arisin2 from exoerience adiustrnent 

Present value of defined benefit obli2ation as at lhe end of the ve.tr 
llxnected contribution for the next Annual reoortin2 oeriod 

(v) Actuarial assumotions 

Particulars 

Discounting rate 
Future salary increase rate 
Retirement age (years) 

Withdrawal rate 

Ages 

Up to 30 years 
From 31 to 44 years 
Above 44 years 

Weiehted avera2e duration 

Asal Asal 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

329.26 1,215.83 

- -
329.26 1,215.83 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2.023 

114.12 417.88 

72.61 89.49 
-

186.73 507.37 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2.024 1 March 2023 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 Ma"h ?n24 31 March 2nn 

1,215.83 1,041.28 
(701.24) 944.46 
114.12 417.88 

72.61 89.49 
-

(180.75) (305.11) 

- -
7.58 (46.19) 

1198.901 (925.98) 
329.26 1.215.83 

77.88 504.70 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 Marrh 2024 31 March 2023 

7.22% 7.36% 
5.00% 5.00% 
60.00 60.00 

100% of lALM 100% ofIALM 
12012-14) /2012-14) 

Withdrawal Withdrawal 
Rate Rale 

3.00% 3.00% 
2.00% 2.00% 
1.00% 1.00% 
17.57 21.15 
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Note -36 
Employee benefits (conti1rued) 

(vi) Sensitivity analysis fo • a tuHv l'ab'Htv r a I I 11 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

11 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Impact of the change in discount rate 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 329.26 1,215.83 
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (18.82) (88.09) 
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 20.47 97.90 
Impact of the change in salary increase 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 329.26 1,215.83 
• Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 20.81 99.72 
• Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 119.291 (90.38) 

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated. 
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of incnease of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable. 

(vi i' Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 
Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
0 to 1 year 8.41 16.46 
1 to2year 24.29 14.88 
2 to3 year 7.05 41.58 
3to4year 7.70 33.54 
4 to5year 4.87 22.21 
5 to 6 year 4.77 31.37 
6 vear onwards 272.17 1,055.78 

C Other long-term employee benefit plans 

The Company provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and 
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on t,!rmination or employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render th,1 related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end 
of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the 
employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The scheme is unfunded and liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. A 
provision of~ 93.83 lakhs (Previous year: ~ (225.69 Lakhs) have beem written back on the basis or actuarial valuation at the year end and credited to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Note -37 
Leases 
The Company has entered into lease arrangements for office buildin,gs. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is 
reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are 
excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, 
plant and equipment. 
Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only 
be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying 
leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings and other pnemises the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and retum the properties 
in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Compamy is required to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the lease contracts. 

A Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability 
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows: 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
11 u ••• L =~• 

Short-term leases 352.98 
Leases of low value assets 
Variable lease oavments . 

B Total cash outflow for leases (excluding short term lease) for the year ended 31 March 2024 wast 1,394.52 lakh (31 March 2023 was, 2,705.94 lakh). 

C The Company has total commitment for short-term leases of, Nil as .at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: t Nil ) 

D Maturity of lease liabilities 
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Futu,re minimum lease payments were as follows: 

31 March 2024 Minimum lease oavment due 
Within 1 vear 1- 2 Years 2-3Years 3-4Years 4 - 5 Years More than 5 •ears 

Lease Pavment 868.72 806.94 737.69 622.60 484.23 632.38 
Interest Expense 324.13 261.39 198.39 138.95 89.72 60.96 
Net Present Value 544.59 545.55 539.30 483.65 394.51 571.42 

'11 '. • _ ....... 

544.64 
. 

Total 
4,152.56 
1,073.54 
3 079.02 

•Dunng the year, some lease contracts were termmated/executed as a result of which the maturity amount has changed as compared to the previous fmancial year 

31 March 2023 Minimum lease oavment due 
Within 1 vear 1-2Years 2-3Years 3-4Years 4-5Years More than 5 vears Total 

Lease Payment 1,378.82 1,022.52 964.05 908.52 719.16 1,158.95 6,152.02 
Interest Exoense 443.42 353.55 284.52 210.94 143.87 151.14 1,587.44 
Net Present Value 935.40 668.97 679.53 697.58 575.29 1007.81 4 <64.58 

E Variable lease payments are expensed in the period they are incurred. Expected future cash outflow as at 31 March 2024 is of, Nil (31 March 2023, Nil ). 
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Note •37 
Leases (conH,mtd) 

F The table below describe the nature of the company's lease activities by type or right-of -use asset recognised on balance sheet : 

Range of 
Average Number of leases 

Right or use assets Number or leases remaining lease with extension 
remaining term 

term ootion 
As at 31 March 2024 88 

3 Months to 88 46 Months 
Office Buildin~ Months 

-

Range or 
Average Number or leases 

Right of use assets Number or leases remaining lease with extension 
remainJng term 

term ont-ion 
As al 31 March 2023 114 

6 Months to 100 SO Months -
Office Buildin• Months 

G The total future cash outflows as at 31 March 2024 for leases that had not yet commenced is Nil (31 March 2023: t 0.40 lakh ). 

H Following are the chanRes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the yea r ended: 

Particulars 

Opening Balance 
Additions 
Deletion 
Deoreciation• 

Number of leases 
with purchase 

ootion 

. 

Number or leases 
with purchase 

onlion 

. 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

3,973.95 
1,671.89 
1,887.20 
1,110.86 
2647.78 Closin" Balance . . 'The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included unde,r depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss . 

The followinR is the movement in lease liabilities durinR the year ended; 

Particulars 

OpeninJI Balance 
Additions 
Finance cost accrued during the year 
Deletion 
Payment of lease liabilities 
Closin2 Balance 

Note -38 
ContinRent liabilities and commitments 
i. Contingent liabilities 

For the year ended 
11 March 2024 

4,564.58 
1,671.89 

448.12 
2,211.05 
1,394.52 
3,079.02 

Number of leases 
with termination 

ontion 

88 

Number of leases 
with termination 

ontion 

114 

For Uie year ended 
31 March 2023 

17,032.76 
629.08 

11,612.72 
2,075.17 
3 973.95 

For the year ended 
31 March ?11?1 

18,389.53 
629.08 

1,000.74 
12,748.83 

2,705.94 
4.564.58 

The Company is involved in certain appellate and judicial proceeduags (including those described below) concerning matters arising in the normal course of business 

including claims from customers. The proceedings in respect of these· matters are in various stages. Management has ass.!ssed the possible obligations arising from such 
claims against the Company, in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 and based on judicial precedents, consultation with 
lawyers or based on its historical experiences. Accordingly, Management is of the view that based on currently available information no provision in addition to that 
already recognised in these financial statements is considered necessary in respect of the below. 

Asat Asat 
Particulars 31 March 2024 11 March 2023 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt; 
a)lncome tax demand on account of penalty u/s 270A in respect of assessment year 2018--19 against which the Company 7.06 -
has preferred an appeal before the CIT (Appeals). 
b)lncome tax demand in respect of assessment year 2022•23. Subsequent to March 31, 2024, the Company has submitted a 0.60 -
rectifkation request for deletion of the demand. 
c) Income tax demand pertaining to equalization levy in respect of a!;sessment year 2020-21. 0.25 . 
d) Income tax demand in respect of assessment year 2013-14 against which the Company had filed an appeal before the CIT 
(Appeals) which was subsequently partially allowed in favour of the Company by CIT (Appeals). Subsequently, the Income 95.04 95.04 
Tax Department had appealed against the aforesaid order passed by the CIT (Appeals) before the Hon'ble IT AT, Delhi 
which i.1 DPndinu adiudication. 
Total 102.95 95.04 

H. Capital commitments 
Ito the extent not orovided for\ 

Asal Asal 
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital a,ccount and not provided for (net of capital advance 3.11 
paid) 
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Note -39 
Financial instruments 

A Financial assets and liabilities 
The carryinl! amounts of financial instruments bv cate11:orv are as follows· 

Particulars 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Fair value through other comprehensive income 
Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Investments 
Other financial assets 
Financial assets measured at cost 
Investments• 

Total 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Trade payables 
Other payables 
Debt securities (including interest accrued) 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) [including interest accrued] 
Lease liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total .. • Investment m subs1d1anes are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27, 'Separate financial statements'. 

B Fair values hierarchy 

Note As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Note - 6 . . 
Note - 7 10,595.31 32,945.56 

Note - 4 4,319.61 11,025.35 
Note - 5 4,420.98 3,199.08 
Note • 6 1,66,5%.51 1,36,722.99 
Note - 7 . 9,999.78 
Note - 8 677.04 2,198.60 

Note - 7 99,115.34 93,129.51 

2,85,724.79 2,89,220.87 

Note -13 943.88 1,030.00 
Note -14 4,658.01 4,671.16 
Note - 15 13,728.76 32,025.44 
Note - 16 3,768.84 7,194.91 
Note -17 3,079.02 4,564.58 
Note -18 3,003.29 7,158.16 

29,181.80 56,644.25 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels 
are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows: 

The categories used are as follows: 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market; 
Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices} observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and 
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobsE,rvable inputs}. 

B.1 a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value• recurring f.air value measurements 

As at 31 March 2024 
Financial assets 
Investments at fair value through profit and loss 
Mutual funds 
Security receipts 
Loans measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Loans 

As at 31 March 2023 
Financial assets 
Investments at fair value through profit and loss 
Mutual funds 
Security receipts 
Loans measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Loans 

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value 
Specific valuation techniq ues used to value financial instruments include: 
(a) the use of quoted market prices for quoted equity instruments and debt securities. 
(b) the use of quoted market prices for derivative contracts at balance sheet date. 

Level 1 

2,861.62 
. 

. 

Level 1 

335.18 
. 

. 

Level 2 

. 
7,733.69 

. 

Level 2 

. 
32,610.38 

. 

(c) the use of net asset value for certificate of deposits and mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party. 

b) Movement of loans measured using unobservable inputs (Level 3)1: 

Particulars 

Opening balance 
Addition during the year 
Disposal during the year 
Gain reco~nised in statement of profit and loss 
Closing balance• 
"The above amounts are gross carrying amounts (refer note 6) 

Level 3 Total 

. 2,861.62 

. 7,733.69 

. . 

Level3 Total 

335.18 
. 32,610.38 

. . 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

. 1,976.96 

. . 
. (1,976.96) 

. 
. . 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -39 
Financial instruments (co11ti1111ed) 

B.2 Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost 
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs: 

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 
CaJTVinv value Fair value C•~in1> value Fair value 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,319.61 4,319.61 11,025.35 11,025.35 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4,420.98 4,420.98 3,199.08 3,199.08 

Investments - - 9,999.78 9,999.78 

Loans 1,66,596.51 1,66,596.51 1,36,722.99 1,36,722.99 

Other financial assets 6n.04 639.38 2,198.60 2,106.99 

Total 1,76,014.14 1,75,976.48 1,63,145.80 1,63,054.19 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 943.88 943.88 1,030.00 1,030.00 

Other payables 4,658.01 4,658.01 4,671.16 4,671.16 

Debt securities 13,728.76 13,662.17 32,025.44 32,089.39 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,768.84 3,768.84 7,194.91 7,194.91 

Lease liabilities 3,079.02 2,966.35 4,564.58 4,333.37 

Other financial liabilities 3,003.29 3,003.29 7,158.16 7,158.16 

Total 29,181.80 29,002 54 56,644.25 56,476.99 

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equiva,lents, other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their respective carrying 
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the 
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were 

used to estimate the fair values: 

Financial instruments measured at fair value and fair value of financial instruments carried at amortized cost 
Inter-relationship between 

Type Valuation technique Significant unobservable input 
significant unobservable 

inpu ts and fair value 
and sensitivitv 

Financial assets and Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the 
liabilities measured at present value of expected receipt/payment discounted Not applicable Not applicable 

amortized cost using appropriate discounting rates 

Financial assets measured 
NA V based method. 

atFVTPL 
Not applicable Not applicable 

Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the 
There is an inverse correlation. Higher 

Financial assets measured present value of expected receipt/payment discounted 
The discount rate is the average lending the discount rate i.e average lending 

atFVOCI rate at which the loans are disbursed rate for the disbursed loans, lower the 
using appropriate discounting rates fair value of the assets 

Note -40 
Financial risk management 

i) Risk Management 
As a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFq, the Company is exposed to various risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. The principal 

A) 

objective in Company 's risk management processes is to measure amd monitor the various risks that Company is subject to and to follow policies and procedures to 
address such risks. Company 's risk management framework is driven by Board and its subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability Management 
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Company gives due importance to prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk 
mitigation, which include verification of credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business and residence, technical and legal 
verifications, conservative loan to value, and required term cover for insurance. The major types of risk Company face in businesses are liquidity risk, credit risk and 
interest rate risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the e,ntity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial 
statements. 

In order to avoid excessive concentration of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. 
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability to perform such obligation is impaired resulting in 
economic loss to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents, loan assets and other financial assets. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this 
information into its credit risk controls. 
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a) 

Note -40 
Financial risk management (continued) 

Credit risk management 
Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the 
agreed time period as per contract. The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for each 
class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Comp,iny assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, 
inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. 
(i) Low credit risk 
(ii) Moderate credit risk 
(iii) High credit risk 

The Company provides for exn...-ted credit loss based on the following· 
Natu.re Assets covered 

Low credit risk 
Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance, loans, Investment in CCD, 
Mutual fund& Securiutv receiot, securitv denn.its and other financial assets 

Moderate credit risk Loans 

Basis of exoected credit loss 

12 month expected credit loss 

Life time ex""'"ted credit loss 
High credit risk Loans and Investment in securitv receiot Life time ex=ted credit loss or fullv orovided for 

Financial assets that expose the entitv to credit risk• 

Particulars 

(i) Low credit risk 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Investments 
Other financial assets 

(ii) Moderate credit risk 
Loans 

(iii) High credit risk 
Investment 
Other financial assets 
Loans 

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without netting off impairment loss allowance. 

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 

Asat As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

4,319.61 11,025.35 
4,420.98 3,199.08 

1,60,000.15 1,30,244.40 
10,595.31 42,945.34 

677.04 2,198.60 

7,950.15 5,827.89 

- -
1,065.14 691.78 
3,223.13 5,842.33 

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits ii; managed by only placing highly rated deposits in banks and financial institutions across the 
country. 

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost 
Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans to employees, security deposits, interest spread on assigned assets and other recoverable. Credit risk 
related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously. 

Loans 
The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems and project appraisal process (wherever applicable) to assess the credit 
risk and define credit limits of borrower, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculated amounts. These processes include a detailed appraisal methodology, 
identification of risks and suitable structuring and credit risk mitigati,Jn measures. The Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for the amounts 
loan assets that become past due and default is considered to have been occurred when amounts receivable become one year past due. 
The major guidelines for selection of the client includes: 
• The client's income and indebtedness levels 
• The client must possess the required Know Your Customer (KYC) d0<:uments 
• Client must agree to follow the rules and regulations of the Company 
• Credit bureau check - In order to deal with the problem of over exte:nsion of credit and indebtedness of the client, the Company undertakes credit bureau checks for 
every client. The credit bureau check helps the Company in identifying clients with poor repayment histories and multiple loans. 

Category• Inputs Assumotions 

Corporate borrowers 1. Historical data as per industry trends 
1. Recoverability assumptions for stage 3 loan assets and related assessment with 2. Supplemental external information that could affect the 

borrowers behaviour 
value of collateral 

Retail borrowers 3. Discount rate is based on internal rate of r,eturn on the 
2. Management judgement is applied to determine the economic scenarios and 

loan the application of probability weights 

* 
.. The Company has used forward looking mformabon in form of GOP ,~rowth rate and unemployment rate spec1f1c to the sector. 

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts 
to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statement of p,rofit and loss. 

b) Credit risk exposure 
i) Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans 

As at 31 March 2024 
Estimated gross 

Expected credit 
Carrying amount 

carrying amount at net of impairment 
default losses provision 

Cash and cash equivalents 4,319.61 - 4,319.61 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4,420.98 - 4,420.98 
Investments 1,09,710.65 - 1,09,710.65 
Other financial assets 1,742.18 1,065.14 677.04 
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Note -40 
Financial risk management (continued) 

As at 31 March 2023 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Other financial assets 

ii) Expected credit loss for loans 

Estimated gross 
carrying amount at 

default 
11,025.35 

3,199.08 
1,36,074.85 

2,310.82 

Expected credit 
Carrying amount 
net of impairment 

losses orovision 
. 11,025.35 
- 3,199.08 
- 1,36,074.85 

112.22 2,198.60 

Definition of default: . . . 
The Company considers default in all cases when the borrower becomies 90 days past due on 1ts contractual payments. 'The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) IS measured at 
12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the probability of default, exposure at default and 

loss given default. 

Chan2es in the 2ross carrvinP amount in relation to loans from be1'ii,nin2 to end of reoortin2 oeriod· 
Particulars Staee 1 Sta2e 2 Sta2e 3 

Gross carrying amount as at 01 April 2022 1,79,728.64 1,35,959.33 55,153.13 

Assets originated 1,15,591.97 . -
Net transfer between stages and de-recognition (1,65,071.60) (1,30,121.59) 17,097.85 

Assets written-off (4.61\ 19.85' (66,408.65) 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 1,30,244.40 5,827.89 5,842.33 

Assets originated 1,52,on.30 . . 
Net transfer between stages and de-recognition (1,22,321.55) 2,122.26 (2,617.19) 

Assets written-off . . (2.01 

Gross carrvin2 amount as at 31 March 2024 1,60,000.15 7,950.15 3,223.13 

Reconciliation of loss allowance orovision from be2innin2 to end of reoortine oeriod· 
Reconciliation of loss allowance Sta2e 1 Staee 2 Sta2e 3 

Loss allowance as on 01 April 2022 1,873.56 12,071.27 22,442.04 

Increase of provision due to assets originated during the year 845.91 . . 

Net transfer between stages and written back (2,173.77) (11,561.37) (51,779.83) 

Created through Security Premium . . 97,500.00 

Loss allowance written-off (0.07\ 10.981 (64,025.131 

Loss allowance as at 31 March 2023 545.63 508.92 4,137.08 

Increase of provision due to assets originated during the year 608.31 . . 

Net transfer between stages and written back 317.57 (334.33) (1,204.25) 

Loss allowance written-off . . (2.01' 

Loss allowance as at 31 March 2024 1,471.51 174.59 2,930.82 

c) Concentration of loans 
Prudent risk management involves the minimisation of concentration risk by diversifying the loan portfolio. Setting up exposure limit for particular industry, sector, 
2eo2raohical area oroduct etc is essential to reduce the concentration of the loan nnrtfolio 

As at As at 
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Corporate borrowers 89,890.03 50,666.05 

Retail borrowers 81,283.40 91,248.57 

Total 1,71,173.43 1,41,914.62 

d) Loans secured against collateral 
Comoanv's secured oortfolio has securitv base as follows" " 

Value of loans 

Particulars As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Secured by tangible assets• 13,Sn.17 26,263.87 

Secured bv other assets . . 
•Eqwtable mortgage of property/ hypothecation of assets 
Wherever required, the Company holds other types of collateral ancl credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralisation on other assets of the borrower, pledge of 
secUiities, guarantees of promoters/proprietors, hypothecation of receivables via escrow account, hypothecation of receivables in other bank accounts, etc. 
The Company does not physically possesses properties or other asset:s in its normal course of business but makes efforts toward recovery of outstanding amounts on 
delinquent loans. Once contractual loan repayments are more than 9() days past due, possession of property may be initiated. Possessed property is disposed of in the 
manner prescribed under the regulatory guidance to recover outstandiing debt. 

e) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or 
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they 
are due. 
The Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors the Company's (through Asset Liability 
Management Committee) liquidity positions (also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities), matching of the financial assets and financial liabilities position and 
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company also takes into account liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. 

(f) Financing arrangements 
The Com an had access to the followin fund in facilities: 
As at 31 March 2024 
- Expiring within one year 
Total 

As at 31 March 2023 
- Expiring within one year 
Total 

Undrawn 
100.00 
100.00 
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Note -40 
Financial risk management (continued) 

(ii) Maturities of financial assets and liabilities 
The tables below analyse the Company financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities. 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows· 
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 vear 1-3 vears More than 3 vears 

Financial liabilities 
Debt Securities 11,387.24 2,683.76 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,670.02 2,810.56 -
Trade payables 943.88 - -
Other payable 4,658.01 - -
Lease liabilities 868.72 1,544.63 1,739.21 
Other financial liabilities 3,003.29 - -
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 22,531.16 7,038.95 1,739.21 

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 vear 1-3 vear More than 3 vears 

Financial liabilities 
Debt securities 17,061.27 17,408.16 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,230.54 3,880.14 2,743.29 
Trade payables 1,030.00 - -
Other payable 4,671.16 - -
Lease liabilities 1,378.82 1,986.57 2,786.63 
Other financial liabilities 7,158.16 - -
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 34,529.95 23,274.87 5,529.92 

C) Market risk 

Total 

14,071.00 
4,480.58 

943.88 
4,658.01 
4,152.56 
3,003.29 

31,309.32 

Total 

34,469.43 
9,853.97 
1,030.00 
4,671.16 
6,152.02 
7,158.16 

63,334.74 

Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institution will be adversely affected by movements in market rates or prices 
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and/ or commodity prices resulting in a loss to earnings and capital. 

The Company's exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk and price risk 

a) Interest rate risk 
i) Liabilities 

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. As at 31 March 2024, the Company is exposed to changes in market 
interest rates borrowings other than debt securities at variable interest irates. 

Interest rate risk exposure 
Below is the overall exoosure of the Comoanv to interest rate risk-

Particulars 

Fixed rate liabilities• 
Debt securities 
Borrowin11;s (other than debt securities) 

Variable rate liabilities• 
Borrowin2s (other than debt securities) 

Total 
• Above borrowmg amounts exclude accrued mterest 
Sensitivity 
Below is the sensitivitv of orofit or loss in interest rates 

Particulars 

Interest sensitivity• 
Interest rates - increase by 0.50% 
Interest rates - decrease bv 0.50% . Holdmg all other variables constant 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 

As at 
31 March 2024 

13,440.65 
-

3,768.84 
17,209.49 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2024 

18.84 
/18.84' 

As at 
31 March 2023 

31,342.88 
900.00 

6,294.91 
38,537.79 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2023 

31.47 
(31.471 

o Ser I,,, 
/,.-, 
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r 
§ 
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DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the st, nd.tlone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note • 40 
Financial risk management (continued) 

ii) Assets 
The Company's term deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since 
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate be<:ause of a change in market interest rates. 

b) Price risk 
i) Exposure 

The Company's exposure price risk arises from investments held and ,classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk arising 
from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets. 

ii) Sensitivity 
The table below summarises the impact of increases/ decreases of the index on the Company's profit for the period: 

Impact on profit after tax 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Mutual funds 
Net assets value - increase by 5" 143.re 16.76 
Net assets value - decrease bv 5" (143.rel (16.76) 

Note - 41 
Capital management 

The Company's capital manaj\ement objectives are 
• to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern 
• to comply with extemally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratinj\S 
• to provide an adequate return to shareholders 

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order tc, maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into 
account the subordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt. The Company manages the capit.11 structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the u~1derlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. 

Particulars Asat Asal 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Net debt' 13,177.99 28,195.00 
Total equity 3,18,186.75 3,10,735.46 
Net debt to eQuitv ratio 0.04 0.09 .. . ' • Net debt 1.ncludes debt secunties + borrowwgs other than debt secunties • cash &: cash equivalents 

(nus spilcr has btt11 illtentional/y left blank) 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh u.nless stated otherwise) 

Note -·42 
Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed! according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

ASSETS 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Investments 
Other financial assets 

Non-financial assets 
Current tax assets (net) 
Deferred tax assets (net) 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right-of-use assets 
Intangible assets under development 
Other intangible assets 
Other non-financial assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILffiES AND EQUITY 

LIABILffiES 
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

Other payables 
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 
Debt securities 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Lease liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 

Non-financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Other non-financial liabilities 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

Net equity 

As at 
31 March 2024 

Within 12 months After 12 months 

4,319.61 
4,420.98 

55,650.12 1,10,946.39 
2,861.62 1,06,849.03 

207.23 469.81 
67,459.56 2,18,265.23 

6,091.78 
44,589.51 
4,130.54 

639.54 2,008.24 

2,931.46 
2,260.49 186.12 
8,991.81 53,845.87 

76,451.37 2, 72,111.10 

943.88 

4,658.01 
11,029.38 2,699.38 
1,393.68 2,375.16 

544.59 2,534.43 
3,003.29 

21,572.83 7,608.97 

11.18 427.30 
755.44 
766.62 427.30 

22,339.45 8,036.27 

54,111.92 2,64,074.83 

(This spaai has been intentionally left blank) 

As at 
31 March 2023 

Within 12 months After 12 months 

11,025.35 
3,199.08 

55,087.23 81,635.76 
10,334.96 1,25,739.89 

665.20 1,533.40 
80,311.82 2,08,909.05 

17,163.85 
47,187.74 
5,659.29 

1,020.19 2,953.76 
317.19 

3,599.21 
2,690.66 348.97 

20,874.70 60,066.16 
1,01,186.52 2,68,975.21 

1,030.00 

4,671.16 
15,451.46 16,573.98 
1,886.13 5,308.78 

935.40 3,629.18 
7,158.16 

31,132.31 25,511.94 

34.24 1,778.54 
969.24 

1,003.48 1,778.54 
32,135.79 27,290.48 

69,050.73 2,41,684.73 



OHANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the su.ndalone financial statements tor the yur ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -43 
Operating segments 
Ceneri.l informition 
The Company operates In a single reportable segment i.e. r,nancing and investing related activities, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 'Operating segments-. is 
conside.red to be the only reportable business segment. The Company derives Its major revenues from financing activities and its customers are widespread. further, the Company is operating in India 
which is considered as a single geographical segment. 

Note •44 
Rela.ted party disclosure 

(a) Details of related parties: 
OescripUon ol relationship 
Holding company 
Subsidiary companies 
(induding step-down subsidiuies) 

Fellow subsidiary companies 
(with whom transutions took place) 

Key management personnel 

Names of related parties 
Dham Services Limited 
TranServ Limited 
lndiabulls Distribution Services Limited 
lndiabulls Alternate lnvestmentslimited 
lndiabulls Investment Advisors Limited 

lndiabulls Asset Reconstruction Company Um1ted and its Trusts 
Dhanj Healthcare Limited 
Dhani Stocks Limited 
Evmos Buildwell L1m1ted 
Juventus Estate L1m1ted 

Mr. Pmonk )oyanl Shah, Whole Time 0 1renor ond Chief Executive Olficer (till I Januory 2023) 
Mr. San,eev Kashyap, Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. I January 2023) 
Mr. Nafees Ahmed, Director (till I July 200!2) 
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, Director (lill 26 Ap1il 2022) 
Mr. Labh Singh S1tara, Independent Direc1or 
Mrs. Preetinder V,rk, Director (1111 04 Aprill 2022) 
Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri, Director (till 31 July 2023) 
Ms. Sargam Kataria, Non Executive D1rect1,r (w,e.( 01 August 2023) 
Mr. Akhil Gupta, Director (26 April 2022 to 05 April 2023) 
Mr.Amit Ajit Gandhi Non Executive 0irecltor (w.e.f. 05 April 2023) 
Mr, Vip1n Choudhary, Director (01 July 20:!2 to 28 November 2022) 
Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary, Non ExecuhvE: Director (w,eJ. 28 November 2022) 
Or. Narendra Oamodar Jadhav, Director (till 04 October 2023) 
Or. Prem Prakash Mirdha, Independent Director (w.e.f. 04 October 2023) 
Mr. Rajcev Lochan Agrawal, Chief Finandal Officer 
Mr. Divyesh BShah, Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer of Ohani Services Limited (CEO w.e.f. 31 March 2023) 
Mr. Sa~r Gehlau~ Chief ExeculiveOffle>er and Non Executive Chalnnan of Ohani Services Limited (Execu11ve Chairman lill 31 March 2023) 

(b) Statement o! tranHctions with reli ted oarties durine: the vear. 

Holding company Subsidia.ries/fellow subsidiaries/ Key ma.na.gement personnel Step-down subsidi;aries 
P;articuJa.rs 

For the year ended For the year ended For lhe yea.r ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Finance 
- Loans given 
(Maximum balance outstanding during the year): 67,298.00 41,100.00 

lnvestment/redemptiorybuyback 
• Investment in security receipts 8,000.11 4,780.00 
• Redemption of security receipts (3,876.80) 1,169.62 
• Redemption of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (9,999.78) 
Buy Back of Equity shares 10,679.17 
Investment ol Equity Shares 16,665.00 
Liabilities 
- Employee benefits liabilities lransferred/(received) (24,28,929.12) (1,335.84) 31.35 
Income 
• Interest income from loan 5,392.27 1,034.71 
• Interest income from Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 540.97 999.98 
• Service ree from securitisation 23.11 28.50 
-Sale of Non Performing Assets (NPA) 5,100.00 60,300.00 
• Foreclosure lees and other related income 2.2, 
• Charge back for common expenses 2.40 2.40 10.93 6.80 
Expenses 
-Professional charges and other charges 0.62 1,171.59 
Dividend piid 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 24.09 

Reimbursement of expenses: paid/(received} 1,320.03 
Compensation to key ma.na.gement personnel (refer foot note--(ii) 
-Short term employee benefits - 123.36 211 .84 
-Sitting fees 7.00 12.00 
• Post employee benefits• gratuity 15.14 7.01 
• Other long-term benefits• compensated absences (3.94) 
-Share based oavment exoenses 11 .70 (1,197.66) 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES UMrTED 
Notes 10 the s1,nd•lone !in,nci•I s1,1emen1s lor the yur ended 31 M•rch 2024 
(AU amow,ts are in lncha.n Rupees tn la.lr..h unless staled otherwise) 

NOie • 44 
RelitNI PfflY disclosurt (cmrtinutd) 

tel Oult d. ,. I YI dNI 31 M•rch 2024· c s an in a Hrtn 
N1ture or tro1nsiction 

Loonsgi•~ 
Jnvestmtnt 1n secunty rttetpts 
Investment Ln compul,only convenible debentures 

HoldinHomn•n• 
ASll Asat 

31 M1rch 2024 31 Mar<h2023 

SubsidiHi~ ... tllow subsidiuies 
Asit I\Silt 

31 Mmh 2024 31 March 2023 
41,100.00 41, 10000 
11,87691 3,610.38 

9,999.78 

(d) Ditdosun ttlitNI 10 F>lrv>lue of Comonle Cu•rintH ,tiven by lhe llolding Company on beh•lf of lhe Como•nv u oer Ind AS 109 •Fin•n<i•I lnslrumtnis•: 

PutlC\dus For the yHr ended Fort ht yu.re.ndtd 
'11 ..,, __ .. 2024 .,, M•"h"""' 

Deemed cost of fair ulue of comnrtlte 1.u .. nntee 
- Dhani ServKes Limlttd 72.16 

T011l 72.16 
Addilfon lo fffl v,,Jut ol co~t, nlUlnltt 
• IJNn1 ~ UmllNI 
Tol•I 
Unamortised oortion o! deemed cost tor corvorate 1tuaro1ntees 
- Ohan/ Services Limited 

TOI>! 

Note(,) 
Guarantee rtleased during the year ended Man:h 31, 2024 IS ! Ntl (31 March 2023: ( 73,014 72 L.ikh) . The corpor,le guarAn~ outstanding as on 31 March 2024 IS ! N,I (31 March 2023: ! NII) 

Note • 45 
Disclosum requittd under Section 22 of lhe Micro, Small •nd Medium Enterprise, De•tlopment Act, 2006: 
(1) Dtc1ils of tndt n.1.v1ble dues to mkro •nd s m.1.IJ enttn,ri.ses u defined under the MSMEO act 2006 
Pi1tic1Jl1.rs 

(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid 10 any supplier as at the end of 1he accounung year 
(u) lntettst d~ thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounumg year 
(111) The amount of 1n1e~1 paid along wuh the amounts of the payment INde 10 the ,:uppl~r beyond lhe appo,nted day 
(1v) The ffllOUI\I of onlffl51 due and p,y•ble for lhe ye,r 
(v) The amount or interest accrued and rm,,.urung unpaid at the end of the a«ountang )"ear 
I {vi) T~ amount or further rnterest due and oavable even in the succeedin2 vear unti I such date when the interest dues as above are actuallv o.11d 

AHi AHi 
31 M•rch 2024 31 Mitt h 2023 

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterpn.ses has been determined 10 the extent such partJes have been 1dent1f1ed on the basis or 1nformat1on available with the Company. 
This ha, been relied upon by the auduors. 

lb\ Oeuils of othtr o.nablt dues to mitro ind sm,11 tnttmrises JS dtfintd undtt the msrntd il<1 2006 
P1r1leulars AUi AUi 

31 M•rch 2024 31 M•rch 2023 
(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid 10 any ,up plier as al lhe end of lhe accounlin@; year 
(u) ln1erest due thereon rem.tining un,,.1d 10 any supplier as at the end or the a«ounting ~ar 
(111) The omounl o( 1niettsl paid >long w11h lhe &m0unts of lhe payment INLde 10 lhe ,,upplitt beyond the •ppotnted day 
(1v) The amount of interest due and pay•~ for the >"'•r 
(v) The amount o( interest ICCrued •nd rtma1rung unpaid 11 the end o( the ICt'ountmg yeilr 
lfvO The amount of further interest due and n..auable even in the succeed1n1t vear, until such date when the interest dues as above are actudllV o"-1d 
The above information regarding M icro, Small and Medium Enterpnses has been de1;ermined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 1nformat1on available with the Company. 
Th,s has been relied upon by lhe aud11ors 

Nolt -46 
Reconciliation of llabilhies arising from finilncing activities 
The chanttes in the Comnanv's liabilities uisine from flnandne ,c,tivhlt's can be classiiitd as (ollows· 

P1rtlC\il•rs Debt s«urities Borrowings 
Lt1.stHabilillH T011l 

I01htrth1n debll 
01 April 2022 54,506.33 1,17,746.17 18,389.53 1,90,642.03 
Olsh nows: 
• Pl'OCIX'ds 9,576.48 9,340.37 18,916.85 
- Repayment (32,019.33) (1,19,766.94) (2,70594) (1,54,492.23) 
Nona.sh: 
• Amort,,.bon o( upfront fee and othtr1 (128.97) (124.69) (25365) 
• Add1t1on during the>"'" 629.al 629.al 
• Addt11on/(reducuon) In interest accrued 162.7.l 162.7.l 
• Others tn.80' (11,748.00) (11,819,R<ll 
31 M•rch 2023 30M<.44 7194.91 4,564.58 43 784.92 

ushtlows: 
• Proceeds 
- Rep1ymen1 (I 7,102.47) (3,426.07) (1,394S2) (21,92306) 
Non cash: 
- Amorusat1on of upfront fees and others (799.76) (799,76) 
• Adduton during lhe ytar 1,67189 1,671.89 
- Addthon/ (redUCl!On) ,n ,n_1 acaued (466.25) (46625) 
-Owrs n.so n.762.93 n,691131 
31 M•rch 2024 13 728.76 3,768.84 JON,02 20.576.61 

(Thi, spa« Jurs btrn intmtioroallv It/I bl•nk) 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note - 47 
Transfer of financial assets 
(Also Refer Note 54 & 60) 

A) Securitisation 
The Company uses securitisations as a source of finance. Such transactions resulted in the transfer of contractual cash flows from portfolios of financial 
assets to holders of issued debt securities. Such deals resulted in continued recognition of the securitised assets since the Company retains substantial risks 

In previous years, the Company has securitized its loan assets to an unrelated and unconsolidated entity. As per the terms of the agreement with 
counterparty, the Company is exposed to first loss default guaranrtee and cash collateral at 13.50% (31 March 2023: 13.30%) of the amount securitised and 
therefore continues to be exposed to significant risk and rewards relating to the underlying receivables. Hence, these loan assets are not derecognised and 

proceeds received are presented as other financial liabilities. 

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and their associated 

liabilities: 

As at As at 
Securitisations 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Gross carrying amount of securitised assets (at amortised cost) 6,526.62 8,165.96 

Gross carrying amount of associated liabilities 3,768.84 6,294.91 

Carrying value and fair value of securitised assets 6,493.07 8,126.00 

Carrvine: value and fair value of associated liabilities 3,768.84 6,294.91 

Net position at Fair value 2,724.23 1,831.09 
. . . The carrying amount of above assets and hab1hties 1s a reasonable approx1mahon of their respective fair values . 

B) Assignment 
During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has sold certain loans by way of direct bilateral assignment, as a source of finance. As per the terms of 
such deals, since the derecognition criteria as per Ind AS 109 are met, (including transfer of substantial risks and rewards) relating to assets being transferred 
to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised from the books of the Company. 

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost and the gain/ (loss) on derecognition. 
Asat As at 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Carrving amount of de-reco12:nised financial assets 3,526.35 -
Gain on sale of the de-reco12:nised financial assets - -

Since the Company has derecognized the above loan assets in entinety (100% assigned and Sold), and as per the agreement there was no interest spread as on 
the date of derecognition, hence there was no profit/ loss on derecognition of financial assets. 

(This space has been i11te11tio11ally left blank) 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITTD 
Notet to the slandalone Hnancl.11 statements for the year endOO 31 Mat(h 2024 
(All amoun1s are in Indian Ru~ In lakh unless Slated otherwise) 

Nol• -'8 
OudooouH i.n tmns ol Al\lltlNtt VIII of the Muttt Oir«non- RfHrvt B•.nk of lndl• Non-B•nkin• IJIJJl<1J omftllnv. •• 1(1 Fi 'IC Sc I b.ued 
P:utlcuun AHi 31 Muth 2024 

Amount runount 

Li•bilitfes Side: Outst>ndln• Overdue 
(1) Loan.t and adv1nce1 avalled by the NBF<:s iflC'luslve of interest 1cC1'\ied thereon 
but not p•ld: 

(a) ~lures : Secured 13,72876 
: Uns«ured 

(othtt 1hln l•lhn11, w11lun the rnun,n11, of publlC ct.posus) 
(b) Defened credits 
(<) Term loons 
(d) lnter<orporate loans and borrowin11, 
(el Comrnerc1al paper 
(I) PubllC Ot-posns 
WOthttlO&nS 
- Loan rei,oy.t>le on demand 
- Other unsecured loans 
- Secunt1sation liabilit1es 3 768.84 

(Z) Br .. k,up of (1)(1) •hove (Outstanding public deposils inclusive o( interest 
-«rued lhereon bul not paid): 
(o) In the form of Unsecured dft>entuft'S 
(b) In the form o( partly s«ured dft>entun,s I e dewntures where there 1$ • ,hortfa II 
in the v•lue o( secunty 

kl Other oublk de=its 

Asoets,lde: 

(3) Break-up ol loans •nd advances Including bills receivables !other th•n those ,included In (4) below I: 
(a) Secured 
(bl Uns«ured 
Less 1mJN.1m-.erH lou allow•nc-e 

Tot•! 

(4) Brtak up o( leued ilMets and .stock on hire ind olher asset$ counlin1; towuds H5tt financing adivities 
(1) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors 

(a) Financial lease 
(b) ()peratinl( lease 

(u) Stock on lure includ1111t hu,, c~ under sundry debtors 
(a)"-tsonlure 
(b) ~sessed ...... 

(111) Other loons counhOR towards asset financing ac11v111es 
(a) Loans where assets have been rel)OSse$5ed 
(b) Loans other than (a) above 

(5) Br .. k-up of Investments: 
Current investments.: 
Cunent lnvts-tments 
1. Quotod: 
(i) Shares (a) &iuuy 

(b) Preforence 
(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Unns of mutual funds 
(1v) Government secunlles 
(v) Othen 

Z. Unquoted; 
(1) Shares: (a) Equity 

(bl Preference 
(11) Debentures and bonds 
(ui) Un,ts of mutlUI funds 
(iv) Government s«unties 
(v) Othen 

r O"D. at on ons, 2023 : 
As •I 31 M•tth 2023 

l\fflOU.nt Amounl 
Outst•ndin• Overdue 

32,025.44 

II00.00 
6.294.91 

. 

Amount Amou.nl 
out,tonding oublfflding 

uat ... , 
31 Much 202A 31 Mvch2023 

13,877.17 26,263.87 
1,57.296.26 1, 15,650.75 

(4,576.92) (5,19163) 
1,66,596.51 1,36,722.99 

---

2.861.62 33518 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March :2024 
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note - 48 {continued) 
Disclosures in terms of Annexure VIII of the Master Direction- Res1:rve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company -Scale based regulation) 
Directions, 2023: (continued) 

Amount Amount 

Assets side: outstanding outstanding 
as at as at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Long Term Investments 
1. Quoted: 
(i) Shares: (a) Equity - -

(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others - -
2. Unquoted: 
(i) Shares: (a) Equity - -

(b) Prefe:rence - -
(ii) Debentures and bonds - 9,999.78 
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others -
(a) Equity investment in subsidiries 99,115.34 93,129.51 
(b) Investment in security receipts 7,733.69 32,610.38 

(6) Borrower stroup-wise classification of all assets financed as in (:I) and (4) above: 
Amount net of provisions 

Category As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 
Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured 

1. Related parties 
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - 67,298.00 - 41,100.00 
(c) Other related parties - - - . 
2. Other than related parties• 13,877.17 89,998.26 26,263.87 74,550.75 
Total 13,877.17 1,57,296.26 26,263.87 1,15,650.75 

'' •Includes prov1s1on against loan assets of~ 4,576.92 lakh (31 March 2:023 { 5191.63 lakh) 

(7) Investor 2rou1>-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both Quoted and unquoted): 
Category As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Book Value Book Value 

Market Value 
(net of allowance 

Market Value 
(net of allowance 

for impairment for impairment 
loss) loss) 

1. Related parties 
(a) Subsidiaries 99,115.34 99,115.34 1,03,129.29 1,03,129.29 
(b) Companies in the same group 7,733.69 7,733.69 3,610.38 3,610.38 
{c) Other related parties . - - . 

2. Other than related parties 2,861.62 2,861.62 29,335.18 29,335.18 
Total 1,09,710.65 1,09,710.65 1,36,074.85 1,36,074.85 

(8) Other information: 
AS at As at 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
(I) Gross non-performing assets 

(a) Related parties . . 
(b) Other than related parties 3,223.14 5,842.33 

(II) Net non-performing assets 
{a) Related parties . -
(b) Other than related parties 292.32 1,705.25 



OHANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (or the year ended 31 March 2:tt?4 
(All amounts are In Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -49 
Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification 0011 (NBFQ.CC.PO.no 109/22.10.10((2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 pertaining to Asset Oassification as per RBI norms 
and Income Recognition, Assel Oassification and Provisioning ("IRACP") n1)rms. 

A 31M h2024 • at •n: 

Gross C.rrying 
Loss Allowances Provis-ions 

Dilierence 
Asset (Provisions) as Net C.rrying between Ind AS 

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classificatic>n as Amount as per re-quired under Amount 
required u per 

109 provisions 
per Ind A$109 Ind AS Ind AS 109 

IRACPnorms and IRACP norms 

m f2l IJl 141 151• !3 • 4\ 16\ f7l • f4\.f6l 

Perfornline: Assets 

Standard Assets 
Stuel I 1,60,000.15 647.52 1,59,352.63 I 640.001 7.52 

Sta•e 2 I 7,950.141 174.59 7,n5.55 I 31.801 142.79 

Sub-Toto) I 167950.291 822.11 1.67128.18 I 671.80 I 150.31 

Non-Performlne Assets fNPA\ 
Substandard Sta•e3 896.21 644.01 254.20 89.82 554.19 

Doubtful • uo to 1 ,ear Sta•e3 2,324.93 2,286.81 38.12 2,284.27 2.54 

t to 3 vears Sta•e3 
More than 3 vears Sta•e3 
Sul> Total For Doubtful 2,324.93 2 286.81 38.12 2,284.27 2.54 

Loss ISta•e 3 
Sub-TolaJ For NPA 3 223.14 2 930.82 292.32 2,374.09 556.73 

!Other items such as guaranteeS, Joan commitments, etc. which Staoe 1 
are in the scope of Ind AS 109but not covered under current Sta•e2 
Income Recognition, Asset C1assirication and Provisioning Stage3 

I flRACPl norms 
Sub-Total 

ISta2el 160,000.15 647.52 1,59.352.63 640.00 7.52 

Total 
ISta•e 2 7950.14 174.59 7,775.55 31.80 142.79 
1Staee3 3 77 .14 2 930.82 292.32 2.374.09 556.73 

ITotol 1 71173.43 3,752.93 167420.50 3.1)45.89 707.0I 

As at 31 Man:h 2023 

Asset Gross Carrying 
Loss Allowances Provisions 

Difference 

Asset CIHsificalion as per RBI Norms cl.issificati1on as Amount as per 
(Provisions} u Net Carrying 

required as per 
between Ind AS 

per Ind AS 109 Ind AS 
required under Amount 

IRACP norms 
109 provisions 

Ind AS 109• and IRACP nonns 

Ill 12\ 13\ !41 (5l• (J\.f41 16\ 11\ • 141-161 

Performine: Assets 

Standard Assets 
Sta•e l 1,30.244.40 545.63 1.29,696.n 520.18 2.5.45 
Staoe 2 5.827.89 508.92 5,318.97 22.92 486.00 

Sub-Total 1---.z .29 1 054.SS 1.35,()17.74 543.10 511.45 

Non-Perforntina Assets INPAl 
Substandard Sta•e3 5,781.52 4,076.27 1,705.2.5 578.15 3,496.12 

Doubtful • uo to 1 vear Sta•e 3 60.81 60.81 60.81 

1 to 3 vears Staoe 3 
More than 3 vears Sta•e 3 
Sub-- Total For Doubt!ul 60.81 60.81 60.81 

Loss ISta•e 3 
Su~ Total For NPA 5,842.33 4 137.08 1,705.25 638.% 3,498.12 
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which Staoe l 
are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current s, •• e 2 
Income Recogmtion.. Asset Classification and Provisioning Stage 3 
IIIRACP\ norms 
Sub-Total 

ISta•e 1 1 ""244.40 545.63 1""698.n 520.18 25.45 

Total 
IS1a2e 2 51127.89 508.92 5.318.97 22.92 486.00 
ts, .. e3 5,842.33 4137.08 1 705.25 638.96 3496.12 
IToUI 1 41 914.62 5191.63 1 "722.99 1182.06 4009.57 

Note -50 
Disclosures in terms of Annex XXU of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023: 

i. Disclosure fornr1ital 10 risk assets ratio ICRARl:- AmounI in t crorel 
Asat AHi 

Items 31 Man:h 2024 31 March 2023 
(i) CRAR(1') 88.391' 84.111' 
(1i) CRAR. Tier I Capital(%) 87.201' 83.461' 
(iii) CRAR. Tier II C,pital (%) 1.181' 0.651' 
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tter-11 capital Nil Nil 
ltvl Amount raised bv is.sue of PernPtual Debt Instruments Nil Nil 

ii. Investments Amount in t crore 
Asat Asat 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
A. Value of investmenls 
(I). Gross value of investments 
a) In India 1,097.11 1,360.75 
b) Outside India 

(11) Provision (or depredation 
a) In India 
b) Outside India 

(JU) Net value of investments 
a) In India 1,097.11 1,360.75 

b) Outside India 

8. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments. 
Opening balance 
Add : Provisions made durln.R tile vear 
Less: Write-off /write-back of excess provLsIons during the year 
Oosine: balance 



OHAN! LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20:!4 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless sta ted otherwise) 

Note -50 
Disc.losures in terms of Annex XXll of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023: (continued): 

iii. Disclosures relating to derivatives: 

The Company does not have any forward rate agreement / interest rate swaps/ exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivatives during the year, (31 March 2023: t Nil) 

iv. Asset liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Asset and Liabilities: 
In accordance with the R<serve Bank or India ("RBI") guidelines for Assets Liability Management System in NBFC, the maturity pattern ol Assets and Liabilities has been estimated 
based on the behavioural pattern o( assets and liabilities on the basis of past d21ta available with the Company. 

Maturitv nattem of assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024: I Amount int crore) 

Foreign Foreign 
Deposits Advances Investments currency Borrowings currency 

assets liabilities 

1 dav to 7 davs 24.81 10.02 
8 dav to 14 davs 10.04 
15 dav to 30/31 davs /One month) 16.70 15.00 0.43 

Over one month and uoto 2 months 0.92 55.50 7.74 
Over two months and uoto 3 months 41.15 35.42 

Over 3 months and uoto 6 months 22.46 18.50 

Over 6 months and uoto 1 vear 29.13 25.43 50.83 
Over 1 vear and uoto 3 vears 540.40 36.56 

Over 3 vears and uoto S vears 780.04 3.42 

Over5 vears 246.08 991.15 19.20 

Maturitv oattem of assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2023: (Amount int crore) 

Foreign Foreign 
Deposits Advances Investments currency Borrowings currency 

as.sets liabilities 

1 dav to 7 davs 13.78 
8 dav to 14 davs 13.78 
15 dav to 30/31 davs (One month) 13.78 4.20 
Over one month and uoto 2 months 39.96 23.64 
Over two months and uoto 3 months 38.58 0.47 
Over 3 months and uoto 6 months 107.47 100.00 1.47 
Over 6 months and uoto 1 vear 344.44 3.35 125.47 
Over 1 vear and u oto 3 vears 395.94 326.10 185.39 
Over 3 vears and uoto S vears 310.00 9.14 
Overs vears 141.42 931.30 30.60 

Notes: 
(a) The above borrowings ex.elude accrued interest. 
(b) The advances comprises of gross loan portfolio I accrued interest and other Ind AS adjustments. 
(c) Advances and borrowings are adjusted !or moratorium granted pursuant to RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020, 07 April 2020 and 23 
May2020 

v, l:xp0sures: 
v. (al Exoosure to real estate sector.• I Amount in, crore) 

Category 
Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Direct exposure 
(i) Residential mortgages: 
Lending fully secured by mortP,ages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that l$ rented 64.10 133.23 
(ii) Commercial real estate•: 
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office building;s, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily 
residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and 35.22 44.16 
construction, etc.). Exposure will also include non-fund based (NFB) limits. 

(iii) Investments in mortgage backed securities {MBS) and other secu.ritised exposures: 
a. Residential 
b. Commercial real estate 

Indirect exposure 
Fund based and non-fund based e>oosures on National Housin• Bank INHBI and Housino Finance Comnanies IHFCsl. 
Total Exoosure to Real Estate Sector 99.32 1n.39 . as per contractual receivables at balance sheet date. 

v. (bl Exnnsure to canital markets• (Amount in , crorel 

Particulars 
Asat Asal 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
i. direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units or equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus or which is not 
exclusively invested in corporate debt; 
ii. advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to i1\dividuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / 
ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-orienteid mutual funds; 
iii. advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or con\l·ertlble debentures or units or equity oriented mutual funds a re taken as 
primary security; 
iv. ad\•ances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral sectarity or shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares/ convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/ units or equity oriented 
mutual funds 'does not fully cover tM advances; 
v. secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on l>ehaU or stockbrokers a1\d market makers; 
vi. loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on dean basis for meeting promoter's 
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources; 
vii. bridge loans to companies ajtainst expected equity nows/ issues; 

viii. All exp0$ures to venture capital funds (both registered and unregistered) 

Total ernnsure to caoital market 
as per contractual receivables at balance sheet date. 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note - 50 
Disclosures in terms of Annex XXII of Master Direction - Res,irve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based 

Regulation) Directions, 2023 (co11tinued): 

v. (c) Details of financing of parent company products 
- There is no financing during the current year. 

v. (d) Details of Single Borrower Limits (SBL) / Group Borrow-er Limits (GBL) exceeded 
. The Company has not exceeded the SBL/GBL prudential exposure limits during the year as set by the Reserve Bank of India. 

v. (e) Unsecured advances - Refer note 6 of financial statements 

vi. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators 
- The Company is not registered under any other regulator otht!r than Reserve Bank of India. 

vii. Penalties imposed by RBI and other Regulators 
- Penalties imposed by RBI on the company for the year amounted to, 20.00 Lakhs (FY 2022-23: t 7.60 Lakhs). 

viii. Disclosure on frauds pursuant to RBI Master direction 
- The frauds detected and reported for the year amounted to, l,772.06 lakh (FY 2022-23: ~ 5,408.74 lakh). 

(ix) Related party transactions:-
Please refer to note no 44 

(x) Revenue Recognition 
Revenue recogniation has not been postponed by the Company during the year (previous year NIL) due to any pending resolutions of 
significant uncertainties. 

• Pr XI, ov1s1on an d contin enc1es 'A mountm crore 

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies shown under the head expenditure in statement of profit For the year ended For the year ended 

and loss 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Provision for depreciation on investment . . 
Provision towards non-performing assets (12.06) (183.05) 
Provision made towards income tax (net of advance tax] . . 

Other provision and contingencies (with details) 
i) Provision for compensated absences (0.94) (2.26) 

ii) Provision for gratuity 1.87 5.07 

Provision for other assets 10.11 0.88 

Provision for Standard assets 5.94 369.41 

xii. Draw down from reserves 
- The Company has not made any drawdown from reserves. 

xiii. Concentration of advances, exposures & NPA's * 
a. Concentration of advances Amount in , crore) 

As at Asat 
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers* 1,560.07 1,155.42 
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the NBFC on borrowers 91.14% 81.42% 
• as per contractual receivables at balance sheet date. 

f :o, b C oncentration o ex osures Amount in t crore (. 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers* 1,560.07 1,155.42 
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers 91.14% 81.42% 
• as oer contractual receivables as per balance sheet date. 

c. Concentration of NPA's Amount in, crore' 
As at As at 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Total exposure to top four NPA accounts• 2.83 4.52 
• as oer contractual receivables as per balance sheet date. 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3il March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless s tated o therwise) 

Note -SO 
Disclosures in terms of Annex XXII of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) 
Directions, 2023 (co11ti11ued): 

d S to 'se d'stribut'on of NP A's' ec f•Wl 1 1 

Sector 

Agriculture & allied activities 
MSME 
Corporate borrowers 
Services 
Unsecured personal loans 
Auto loans 
Other personal loans 
• as oer contractual receivables as oer balance sheet date. 

xiv. Movement of NPAs 

Particulars 

a. Net NPAs to Net Advances(%) 
b. Movement of NPAs (Gross) 
i) Opening balance 
ii) Addition/ (reversal) during the year (net) 
iii) Reduction during the year 
iv) Closing balance 

c. Movement of Net NPAs 
i) Opening balance 
ii) Addition/ (reversal) during the year (net) 
iii) Reduction during the year 
iv) Closing balance 

d. Movement of provisions for NPA (excluding provisions on standard assets) 
i) Opening balance 
ii) Provision made/(reversal) during the year 
iii) Reduction during the year 
ivl Closin<> balance 

xv. Overseas assets 
There are no overseas asset owned by the Company. 

xvi. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored 
There are no SPVs which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms. 

xvii. Remuneration of directors:­
Please refer to note no 44 

xviii. The Comoanv has been assirned the follow in 

Facility 

Non- convertible debentures - Public issue 

Non- convertible debentures - Privatelv issue 
Commercial oaoers 
Bank borrowings 

credit ratin<rs: 

Name of Rating Agency 

Credit Analvsis & Research Limited 
Brickwork RatinQs India Pvt Ltd. 
lnfomerics Valuation And Ratinl! Private Limited 
Brickwork Ratinl!s India Pvt Ltd. 
Brickwork Ratinl!.s India Pvt Ltd. 
Credit Analvsis & Research Limited 
Brickwork RatinQs India Pvt Ltd. 
Infomerics Valuation And Ratin11: Private Limited 

%ofNPA'sto 
total advances in that sector 

Asat Asat 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

0.06% 0.00% 
0.12% 0.27% 
0.00% 0.05% 
0.04% 0.24% 
0.00% 0.00% 
0.00% 0.00% 
1.66% 3.54% 

! Amount in f crore 
As at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
0.17% 1.24% 

58.42 551.53 
(26.17) 1,609.78 
(0.02) (2,102.89) 
32.23 58.42 

17.05 327.11 
(14.13) 319.53 

0.00 (629.59) 
2.92 17.05 

41.37 224.42 
(12.04) 1,290.25 
(0.02) (1,473.30) 
29.31 41.37 

As at Asal 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

CARE BB+ (Stable) CARE BBB+ (Negative) 

BWR BBB-/Neo-ative BWR A+ICWOI 
IVR BBB-/ Neo-ative IVRAICWDO 
- BWRA+ICWDI 
- BWRAl 
- CARE BBB+ INec,ative l 

BWRA+ICWD\ 
- IVRAICWOn 

xix. Disclosures of complaints in terms of Annex VII of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based 
Regulation) Directions, 2023 
ll Summarv information on comolaints received bv the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers 
1. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 22 396 
2. No. of complaints received during the year 3,202 10,961 
3. No. of complaints disposed during the year 3,217 11,335 
3.1 of which, number of complaints rejected by tl\e NBFC 
4. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 7 22 

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 
5. Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office o f Ombudsman 794 2,604 

5.1 ol 5, number of complaints resolved in favour o/ the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 788 2,553 
52. of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/ advisories issued by Office of 

6 51 Ombudsman 
5.3 of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by· 01/ice of Ombudsman against the 
NBFC 
6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipu lated time (other than those appealed) -



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES UMITED 
Notes to the st,1ndalone financial statements fo r the yur ended 31 M.tn:h 20241 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -SO 
Disclosures in terms o( Annex VII of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of Indi.a (Non-Rankin~ Financi.il Comp,1ny - Sc.1Je Based Re~ulation) Di.rtctions, 2023 (continued): 

Top five 1.rounds of comnJaints received bv the NBFCs from customers 
Grounds of c,ompl,1ints, (i.e. complaints rtlilring to) Number of NumMrof % incre.ue/ decrease Numbtrof Of S, number of 

c,ompl4tjnts pending complaints received in the number of compl•ints pending compli.ints pending 
at the beginning of during the year complaints received it the end of the yHt beyond JO d,1ys 

the yeir over the previous 
yur 

1 2 3 4 C 6 
For the "t.U ended 31 Much 2024 

,vr Mi I= 4 985 ,, .. 3 
1111 n ... 1.,.h..,, ..... 1 1ove ... : ..... 5 890 .... 

6 364 ,..~, 
.... _ .. ....,l'P, .......... 1 344 ,=• I 

a--RPlatPd 3 112 
-,;,-.;, 

,,.., __ 
3 Y1l ,.,. 3 

Total 22 3202 7 

For the vear Pnded 31 March 2023 
'>.Ai , .. 57 3043 .... 4 

p-.......... , ... C.anN">ll:itinn 17 539 ,.. 
EMI Pn••---n• R Id,.., 74 483 ,-. 

· uwvoi .. .-• -.: .. -,.nntinnrt.."'rotw: RPJ-u......r 11 224 174'< 
p- ·- •W:11Jo-tRoJ••- 26 78 , ... 
0th•"' 211 6""' ,no 13 

' ""' 396 10,961 17 

Nott -51 

COVIO 19 ReAul•tory Pack.a.At· 
(i) Disclosures pursu>nt to RBI Notification RBV2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/.V21.ol.Ooll\f2020-21 dated 06 August 2020 and RBV2021·2Z/.11/DOR.STR.RECJJ/21.o4.0oll\f2021·22 dated 5 
Mav 2021· 

IAI I 181 I ,n ' 101 "" 
For lhe half vear ended March 31. 2024 

Exp0su re to accounts Of (A), aggregate debt Of (A) amount Of (A) amount paid Exposure lo 
classifie-d as Standard 1hat shpped into NPA written oH during by the borrowers accounts classified 

con:SC9uent to during the half-year the half-year during the half-year H Standard 
imple,mentation of consequent to 

Type of borrower resohJtion plan - implementation of 
Position resolution plan -

as at the end o( the Position as at the 
prevlc,us half-year end of this ha~•year 

Pl"-""'n ll_n;,mi 
....oroorate oersoni• 

Of which MSMEs 
Others 0.8< 0.85 

Total o•• 0.85 
'As def med on Secuon 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

IA\ IBI I IOI I /A 

For the half ve;ar ended Seotemb-er 30 2023 
Exposure to accounts Of (A), aggregate debt Of (A) amount Of (A) amount paid Exposure to 
classtfied as Standard lhal slipped inlO NPA wnlle,, off during by the borrowerc account! clmilled 

con:;equent to during the ha.l(•year the half-year during the half-year as Standard 
implementation of consequent 10 

Type o( bo1TOwer resolution plan - implementation of 
P'osition resolution plan -

as at the end of the Position as at the 
previoius half-year end of this half-year 

Pe=nal Loans 10>.n 4.Jn 201.62 
"roorate DPrsons• 

0( which MSMEs 
Oth<-rs 25.21 24.36 0.85 

Total 230.93 4.10 225.98 0.85 
•Asdelined in Section 3(7) o( the lnsolveocv and Bankruptcy Code. 2016 

IAI I IBI I IC'I 101 I IF'\ 
For the hall vear ended March 31, 2023 

Exposu1re to accounts Of (A), aggregate debt Of (A) amount Of (A) amount paid Exposure to 
clossilied as Standard that slipped into NPA written oH dunng by the borrowers accounts classified 

conf;equent to during the hall.year the h•ll-year during the hall-year as Standard 
implernentation o( consequent to 

Type o( borrower resolution plan - implementation of 
Position resolution plan -

as at the end or the Position as at the 
previous half-year end o( this half-year 

Personal Loans 18 283.44 2 289.03 1"19<,42 •=.27 ?nl:..72 
Cornnrate rvirsons• 3.10 3.10 

Of uiiich MSMEs 
Others 180.(17 126,64 28.22 25.21 
Total 11t4""."'" '41•.77 1•~ -·.v .. , ... 
As defined m Section 3(7) of the In.solvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

IAI 18\ I ,n ' ti)\ ---,,,,-
For the half vea.r ended Sentember 30, 202:2 

Exposure to accounts Of (A), aggregate debt Of (A) amounl Of (A) amount paid Exposure to 
classil1e1:1 as Standard that slipped into NPA written off during by the borrowers accounts classUied 

consequent to during the half-year the hall-year dunng the half-year as Standard 

Type of borrower 
implernentation o( con.sequent to 
resohution plan - implementation ol 

P,osition resolution plan -
as at thie end or the Position as at the 
previous half-year end ol this half-year 

Personal Loans 2011s.n 477,9,1 1417.~ fi2"44 
-,.rnnrat~-.. n • 27.?S 4.80 19.35 3.10 

Ofu,h;d, MSME, ·--~ 211."'1 4.62 Tl.11 180.(17 
Total "1417.77 .. ,,, ,,. •n ... ,, ,. 
As defined in Se<11on 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy c.ode, 2016 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES UMITED 
Notes to the st~dafone flnanci•I st•tements for the year ended 31 Mu~h 2024 
(AU amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note - 51 (Continued) 

(ii) Dooosures for the year ended 31 Mud, 2024 pursuant to RBI Notificallion RBV2020-21/17 DOR.No.BP.BCA/21.04.04&/2020-21 dated 06 August 2020 (for restructuring of 
accounts of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of advances having exposure less th~ or equaJ tot 25 crores). 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the yeu ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Number o( accounts 
Number of 

Typ,e of borrower 
restructured 

(Amount in , l.akh) a.ccounts (Amount in , L.akb) 

MSMEs 14.00 30.81 
Total - - 14.00 30.81 

(iii) In terms o( Circwar no. RBl/2014-15/458, DNBR(PD).CC.No 019/03.10.01/:2014-15 dated February 06, 2015, every NBFC is required to become a member of aU Credit information 
Companies. As of the date o( these financial statements, the Company has 1>btained the membership of Equifax Information Services Private Limited, CRfF High Mark Credit 
Information Services Private Linuted, Expenan Credit lnfomlatiOn Company o( India Private Limited and Credit Information Bureau (India) Limited. 

(iv) As at March 31, 2024, the Company is in compliance with RBI Circular No. RBl/2021-2022/125 OORSTR.REC.68/21.04.1)48/2021-22 dated November 12 2021 and subsequent RBI 
Circular OORSTR.REC.85/21.04.048/2021·22 dated February 15 ,2022. related to classificanon of NPA and up-gradation o f acrountsdassi!1ed as NPA. 

Note -52 
Disclosures in terms o( Annex VI of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company- Sole Based Regulation) Directions, 2023: 
i Fundin2 Concentration based on si2nificant counterparty for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Sr. no. Number o( Significant Counterparlies Amount % of Total ~posits (Hncrores) 
1 1 37.69 N.A 

Fundln Concentration based on si nificant counte a for the ear ended 31 March 2023 

Sr. no. Number of Significant Counterputies Amount 
(' in crores) 

•;. ofTotat Deposits 

2 71.95 N.A 
Notes: 

•A, of Total 
UabUllles 

12.41~ 

% of Total 
Liabilities 

1211% 

- A "Significant counterparty" is defined as a single counterparty or group o( connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than t % o( the NBFC-NDSI's, 
NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs 

ii. Top 20 large deposits 
- There is no deposit outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (FY 2022-23: f Nil) 

iii. To 10 borrowin s 

As at 31 March 2024 Amount % o(Total 
tin crores Borrowin s 

To 10 Borrowin 37.69 100.00% 

As at 31 March 2023 Amount 
, in crores Borrowin 

To 10 Borrowin 71.95 100.00% 

iv. Fundin Concentration based on si ificut instrumen roduct for the ear ended 31 ~h 2024 
Sr. no. Name of the instrumenVproduct Amount o/eofTotal 

tin crores Liabilities 
Non- ronvertible debentures 137.29 45.20% 

Fund in Concentration based on si nificant instrumen roduct for the ear ,ended 31 March 2023 
Sr. no. Name o( the instrumenVproduct Amount ¾of Total 

tin C Liabiliti 
1 Non- convertible debentures 320.25 54.0l~ 

Notes: 
- A "significant instrument/produc1• is defined as a single instrument/produ_ct o( group of similar UlStruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC­

NDSl's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs 

v. Stock Ratios: 
a. Commercial papers 
- There is no ronunercial papers outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (FY 2022-23: f Nil). 

b. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) 
- There is no Non-convertible debentures with original nlaturity of less than one year outstdnding as at 31 March 2024 (FY 2022-23: t Nil). 



OI-IANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended :n March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless staled otherwise) 

Nole -52 
Disclosures in terms o{ Annex VI of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 : {continued): 

c Other short-term llabililies 
Particulars 

I ¾ ofTotal ,, 'loofTotal I %of Total 
Public Funds liabilities ASsets 

As at 31 March """4 
Loans re,ru.vable on demand from banks I 0.00" I 0.00" I 0.00" 

Particulars 

I ¾of Total ,I ¾ofTotal I 0/e of Total 
Public Funds Lia bi lilies A,sets 

As al 31 March "'WV\"' 

Loans renavable on demand from banks I 0.00" I 0.00" I O.OOli\ 

vi. Ins titutional sel•up for liquidity risk management 

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of all the risks, including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in the 
course of conducting its business. The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the management of liquidity risk. The Board of Directors approves the 
constitution of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) for the effective supervision. evaluation. monitoring and review of various aspects and types of risks, including liquidity ris~ faced by 
the Company. The meetings of RMC are held as warranted hom time to time. Fuirther, the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), which functions 
as the strategk decision,.making body for the as.set·liabilHy management of the C:>mpany from risk-return perspective and within the risk appetHe and guard•rails approved by the Board. The 
main objective of ALCO is to aMist the Board and RMC in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset liability management. market risk management, liquidity and interest rate risk 
management and also to ensure adherence to risk tolerance/limits set up by the Board. ALCO provides guidance a,,d directions in terms of interest rate, liquidity, funding sources, and 
investment of surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held as warranted horn time to •time. 

Note -53 
!al Disclosures in terms of Annex XXI o{ Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India !Non-Bankin• Financial Comoanv - Scale Based Reirulationl Directions, 2023: (Amount in t crore' 

(>4 FY 23-24 OJFY23-24 O2FY23-24 01 FY 23-24 

PanicuJars Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total 
unweighted weighted unweighted weighted unweighted weighted unweighted w~.~~~~ed v-'-· v,, ... ___ ,. __ v,, ... ... , ... v,, ... 

Cash and Bank Balance 6,463.80 6,463.SO 3,9'17.26 3,9'17.26 629.25 629.25 2,235.48 2,235.48 
Hi•h Oualitv Llauid Assets !HUI.Al 6,463.SO 6,463.SO 3,9'17.26 3,997.26 629.25 629.25 2,235.48 2,235.48 

Cash outflows 
Dent'\.Cit.s 
Unsecured wholesale fundine 
Secured wholesale fundine 4,71:8.07 5,425.78 1,110.73 
Additional reauirements 

1,m.34 1,110.73 1.2n.34 1,076.86 1,238.39 

• Outflows related to derivative exposure and other collateral 
requirements 

• Outflows related to loss of fundin• on debt products 
- Credit and liauiditv facilities 
Other contractual fundine oblieations 
Other contineent fundino- oblio-ations 
Total cash outflows 4,7113.07 5,425.78 1,110.73 1,277.34 1,110.73 1,277.34 1,076.86 1,238.39 

Cash inflows 
Secured lendine 
Inflows from fuUv r>Prformino- advances 1,98H.33 1;191.25 185.04 138.78 361.24 270.93 4,000.00 3,000.00 
Other cMh inflows 
Total cash Inflows 1,98ll.33 1;191.25 185.04 138.78 361.24 270.93 4,000.00 3.000.00 

Tota!HOLA 6,463.80 3,997.26 629.25 2,235.48 
11 o(al net Ci.Sh oumows over next"'-' aays 
(Weighted value of total cash outflow- Minimum of weighted value of total <:ash 3,934.53 1,138.56 1,006.41 309.60 
inflows, 15•1. of wei•hled value of total cash outflow) 
liauiditv coveraa.e ratio j¾) 164.28% 351.08% 62-52o/. 722.06% 

Note-1: The above LCR or 164.28li\ is computed based on the average monthly cai:h inflows and outflows for Q4 FY 23-24. 

Note-2: ln computing the above information certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submission which have been relied upon by 
... . - . . ..11"- - -

04 FY22-23 03 FY22-23 O2FY22-23 01 FY22-23 
Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Particulars 

unweighted weighted unweighted weighted unweighted weighted unweighted weighted 
v-• ... , ... v,, ... ... , ... v,, ... .. , .... v,, ... ... , ... 

Cash and Bank Balance 4,3211.68 4,328.68 2,646.91 2,646.91 12,447.57 12,447.57 37,991.94 37,991.94 
Hi•h Oualitv liauid Assets (HOLA.l 4.3211.68 4,328.68 Z,646.91 2,646.91 12,447.57 12,447.57 37,991.94 37,991.94 

Cash outflows 
Oeoosits 
Unsecured wholesale fundin• 
Secured wholesale fundin2 7,06?.26 8,127.35 791.97 910.n 10,717.61 12,325.25 35 762.06 41,126.37 
Additional reauirements 
- Outflows related to derivative exposure and other collateral 
requirements 

- Outflows related to loss of fundin• on debt oroducts 
• Credit and linuiditv facilities 
Other contractual fundinv. obliv.ations 
Other conlin2ent fundin2 obli2ations 
Total cash outflows 7,067'.26 8,127.35 791.97 910.77 10,717.61 12,325.25 35,762.06 41,126.37 

Cash inflows 
Secured lendin2 
Inflows &om fullv oerformin2 advances 4,42Cl.80 3,315.60 5,202.19 3,901.64 10,589.25 7,941.94 22,970.00 17,227.50 
Other cash inflows 
Total cash InOows 4,420,.so 3.315.60 5,202.19 3,901.64 10,589.25 7,941.94 22,970.00 17,227.50 

Total HOLA 4,328.68 2,646.91 12,447.57 37,991.94 
I1 01a.I ne1 casn ouu1ows over nex1 -,u aays 
(Weighted value oC total cash outflow• Minimum o( weighted value of total cash 
inflows, 75% of wei2hted value of total cash outflow! 4,811.75 227.69 4,383.31 23.898.87 
Liauiditv coveraee ratio fo/•l 89.96% 1162.49"/, 283,980/o 158.97"/• 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -53 
(a) Disclosures in terms of Annex XXI of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 
(continued) 

Note-1: The above LCR of 89.96% is computed based on the average mornthly cash inflows and outflows for Q4 FY 22-23. The LCR for Q4 FY 22-23 computed based on 

the average of the respective LCRs (not adjusted for average cash inflows; and outflows) for each of the months in Q4 FY 22-23 is calculated at 5832.04 %. 

Note-2: In computing the above information certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submission which 
have been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note-3: 
a. Unweighted Values: Inflows and outflows within 1 month are conside,red as per outstanding balances that mature in 1 month. 
b. Weighted values are calculated as per the applicable haircuts or stress factors. 
c. Below is level of minimum LCR in terms of Annex XXl of the RBI Directions, 2023 

!From 
~inimumLCR 

(b) Disclosure of Foreign Currency Exposures: Nil (Previous year: Nil) 

Note - 54 

Decem er1, 
2020 

30% 

Decem erl, 
2021 

50% 

Decem erl, 
2022 

60% 

Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC 5]/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 24th September 2021 

a Details o transfer throu2h assi11:nment in resoect of loans not in delfault durin2 the vear 

Particulars 

Entitv 
Count of Loan accounts Assianed 
Amount (t Crore\ of Loan accounts Assimed 
Retention of beneficial economic interest /MRR\ /~ Crore' 
Wei!!hted Avera!!e Maturitv /Residual Maturi"'' /Months\ 
Wei!!hted Avera2e Holdin2 Period fMonths\ 
Covera2e of tan2ible securitv covera2e 
Ratin2-wise distribution of rated loans 

/b\ Details of stressed loans transferred durinv the vear· 

ecem er 1, 
2023 

85% 

Decem erl, 
2024 

100% 

( Amount in t crore 
For the year For the year 

ended ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2n?~ 

NA NA 
9 NA 

38.01 NA 
- NA 

247 NA 
48 NA 
1 NA 

Unrated NA 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

To Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARC) To Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARC) 
NPA SMA Total NPA SMA Total 

Number of accounts 128890.00 1 814.00 130 704 25 34 246 NIL 25 34 246 
A<>o-re2ate princinal outstandin<> of loans transferred ft in crore\ 79.54 23.50 103.04 2 375.00 NIL 2 375.00 
Wei<>hted averao-e residual tenor of the loans transferred lin vears\ 1.10 6.70 7.80 1.30 NIL 1.30 
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) (f in 27.77 23.23 51.00 1,316.76 NIL 1,316.76 
crore) 
A22re!!ate consideration It in crore\ 34.56 16.44 51.00 603.00 NIL 603.00 
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred - - - NIL NIL NIL 
in earlier years 
Excess provisions reversed to the Profit and Loss Account on 18.41 1.23 19.64 NIL NIL NIL 
account of sale 

(c) The Company has not acquired any stressed loan durinp; the year end,ed 31st March 2024. 

Note -55 
Details on recoverv ratinvs assi=ed for Security Receints as on 31st March 2024· 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Anhc1pated 

Amount 
AntlClpaled 

Amount 
Recovery Rating recovery as per recovery as per 

recovery ratin2 (fin Lakhs) recovery ratin!!: (fin Lakhs) 

RRl 100%-150% 7,733.69 100%-150% 32,610.38 
Total 7,733.69 32,610.38 



OHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
/ All amounts are in Indian Ruoees in lakh unless sta,ted otherwise\ 

Note-56 
Employee stock option schemes: 

The Holding Company has issued various Employ,ees stock options scheme (ESOP / ESOS) for the benefit of its employees and its 
subsidiary companies. 

The Holding Company has established the "Udaan Employee Welfare Trust" ("Udaan - EWf") ("Trust") for the implementation and 
management of its employees benefit scheme viz. the "Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme - 2008 & 2009" 
(Scheme) for the benefit of its employees and its subsidiaries. 

A. Grants during the year: 
There have been no new 11:rants durin11: the year (Pre:vious year 1,16,00,000 shares). 

B. Employees Stock Options Schemes: 
(i) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2008 (OSI!, ESOP - 2008) 

Total options under the scheme (Nos.) 
Options 11:ranted (Nos.) 

Vesting period and percentage 

Vesting date 

Exercisable period 

Exercise price (t) 
Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos .. ) 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (weighted months) 

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos .. ) 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (weighted months) 

97,00,000 
(Regrant) 

Five years, 
20% each year 

2nd July each 
year, 

commencing 
2 July 2017 

5years from 
each vesting 

date 
24.15 

45,94,800 

5,50,400 
22,00,000 

18,44,400 
18,44,400 

30 

18,44,400 

6,94,400 

11,50,000 
11,50,000 

19 

DSL ESOP - 2008 
2 00 00 000 

8,80,600 18,00,000 
(Re grant) (Re grant) 

Five years, 
20% each year 

25th March 
each year, 

commencing 
25 March 2019 

5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
254.85 

27,400 

27,400 

Five years, 
20% each year 

28th June each 
year, 

commencing 
28June 2023 

5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
30 

18,00,000 

18,00,000 

87 

18,00,000 

9,00,000 

9,00,000 
1,80,000 

75 

18,00,000 
(Regrant) 

Five years, 
20% each year 

251h February 
each year, 

commencing 
25 February 

2023 
5 years from 
each vesting 

date 

68 
18,00,000 

18,00,000 

Weighted average exercise price of share during the year ended 31 March 2024: Not Applicable (31 March 2023: Not Applicable). 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for th,e year ended 31 March 2024 
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Note -56-continued 

(ii) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2009 (DSL- ESOP 2009) 

Total options under the Scheme (Nos.) 
Options granted (Nos.) 

Vesting period and percentage 

Vesting date 

Exercisable period 

Exercise price (t) 

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos . .) 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos .. ) 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

20,50,000 

Ten years, 
10% each year 

13th April each 
year, 

commencing 
13 April 2011 

5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
31.35 

50,000 

50,000 
50,000 

24 

50,000 

50,000 
50,000 

12 

OSI, ESQf - 2002 
2,00,00,000 

95,00,000 
!Re~ant) 
Five years, 

20% each year 

13th May each 
year, 

commencing 
13 May 2017 

5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
16 

25,01,600 

7,11,200 

17,90,400 
17,90,400 

31 

17,90,400 

1,62,000 

16,28,400 
16,28,400 

19 

98,00,000 
{Re~ant) 
Five years, 

20% each year 

28th June each 
year, 

commencing 
28 June 2023 

5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
30 

98,00,000 

98,00,000 

87 

98,00,000 

41,00,000 

57,00,000 
11,40,000 

75 

/This .sriace has been intentiona/111 left blankl 

1,00,00,000 
!Re~ant) 
Five years, 

20% each year 

2nd September 
each year, 

commencing 
2September 

2018 
5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
219.65 

12,96,800 

12,96,800 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 

~o:es to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
amounts are in Indian Ruoees in lakh unless sltated otherwise) 

Note -56--continued 

Total ootions under the Scheme (Nos.) 
Oohons eranted <Nos.) 

Vesting period and percentage 

Vesting date 

Exercisable period 

Exercise price (t) 

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos.)1 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.) 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

Weighted average exercise price of share during the year ended 31 March 2024: Nil (31 March 2023: Nil) 

(iii) Dhani Services Limited· Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2019 ("Scheme") ("DSL-ESBS 2019"). 

DSL ESOP-
2009 

2,00,00,000 
98,00,000 
<Reerantl 

Five years, 
20% each year 

25th February 
each year, 

commencing 
25 February 

2023 
5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
68.00 

98,00,000 
98,00,000 

DSLESOP­
zoo9 

2,00,00,000 
84.00.000 
<Ree:rant) 
Five years, 

20% each year 

01st April each 
year, 

commencing 
01 April 2022 

5 years from 
each vesting 

date 
150.00 

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its 
meeting held on 22 October 2019; and (b) a special r,esolution of the shareholders' of the holding Company passed through postal 
ballot on 4 December 2019, result of which were declared on 5 December 2019. 

This Scheme comprises: 
a. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 ("ESOP Plan 2019") 
b. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase· Plan 2019 ("ESP Plan 2019") 
c. DhaniServices Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2019 ("SARs Plan 2019") 

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Bo,ard of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the "SBEB 
Regulations"), the Holding Company has set up "Udaan - Employee Welfare Trust" ("Trust") for the purpose of implementation of 
the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with the "SBEB Regulations", is 
authorised to purchase upto an aggregate of 10,500,000 (One Crore Five lakh) fully paid-up equity shares, being not more than 2% 
(Two percent) of the fully paid-up equity share capita,! of the Holding Company as on the date of approval of shareholders, from the 
secondary market. The Holding Company has appropriated 10,400,000 fully paid up equity shares of the Holding Company 
ourchased bv the Trust under the Scheme. 



OHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the: year ended 31 March 2024 
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Note -56-continued 

Total options under the Scheme <Nos.) 
Options stranted <Nos.) 
Vesting period and percentage 

Vesting date 

Exercisable period 

Exercise price (t) 

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (No~1.) 
Granted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired durmg the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.) 
Granted during the year (Nos.) 
Forfeited durmg the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

(iv) Dhani Services Limited• Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2020 ("Scheme") ("DSL-ESBS 2020"). 

DSL-ESBS 2019 

1,05,00,000 
1,04,00,000 

Three years, 
33.33% each 

year 

1th August 
each year, 

commencing 
17 August 

2021 
5 years from 
each vesting 

date 

250 

1,04,00,000 

1,04,00,000 

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its 
meeting held on 23 January 2020; and (b) a special resolution of the shareholders' of the Holding Company passed through postal 
ballot on 20 March 2020, result of which were declared on 21 March 2020. 

This Scheme comprises: 
a. Ohani Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2020 rESOP Plan 2020") 
b. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2020 ("ESP Plan 2020") 
c. Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rig;hts Plan 2020 ("SARs Plan 2020") 

In accordance with the Securities and ExchangE: Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the "SBEB 
Regulations"), the Holding Company has set up "Udaan . Employees Welfare Trust' (Trust) for the purpose of implementation of the 
Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with the "SBEB Regulations", is authorised 
to purchase upto an aggregate of 9,300,000 (Ninety Three lakh) fully paid-up equity shares, being not more than 2% (Two percent) of 
the fully paid-up equity share capital of the holding Company as on the date of approval of shareholders, from the secondary 
market. The Holding Company has appropriated 93,00,000 fully paid up equity shares of the Holding Company purchased by the 
Trust under the Scheme. 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
( All amounts are in Indian Ruoees in lakh unless st21ted otherwise) 

Note -56-continued 

Total ootions under the Scheme (Nos.) 
Ootions 11:ranted (Nos.) 
Vesting period and percentage 

Vesting date 

Exercisable period 

Exercise orice m 

Outstanding as at 1 April 2022 (Nos.) 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

Outstanding as at 1 April 2023 (Nos.) 
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 
Expired during the year (Nos.) 
Surrendered during the year (Nos.) 
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 

(v) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benelfit Scheme 2021 ("Scheme") ("DSL-ESBS 2021"). 

DSL-ESBS 2020 

93,00,000 
93,00,000 

Three years, 
33.33%each 

year 

7'h April each 
year, 

commencing 7 
April 2021 

5 years from 
each vesting 

date 

250 

93,00,000 

93,00,000 

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its 
meeting held on 06 March 2021; and (b) a special 1resolution of the shareholders' of the Holding Company passed through postal 
ballot on 15 April 2021, result of which were declared on 16 April 2021. 

This Scheme comprises: 
a. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2021 ("ESOP Plan 2021 ") 
b. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2021 ("ESP Plan 2021") 
c. Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 ("SARs Plan 2021 ") 

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the "SBEB 
Regulations"), the Holding Company has set up "Uclaan - Employees Welfare Trust" (Trust) for the purpose of implementation of the 
Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes a,s aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with the "SBEB Regulations", is authorised 
to purchase upto an aggregate of 1,05,00,000 (On,e Crore Five lakh) fully paid-up equity shares, being not more than 2% (Two 
percent) of the fully paid-up equity share capital of the Holding Company as on the date of approval of shareholders, from the 
secondary market. The Holding Company has not granted any options/ SARs under the said Scheme as at 31 March 2024. 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Noles to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
I All amounts are in Indian Ruoees in lakh unless stllted otherwise) 

Note -56-continued 

C. Fair Valuation: 
The details of the Fair value of the options / !,ARs as determined by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants, for the 
respective plans using the Black-Scholes Merton Option Pricing Model:-

1. Exercise price m 
2. Expected volatility• 
3. Option Life (Weighted Average) (in years) 
4. Expected Dividends yield 
5. Risk Free Interest rate 
6. Fair value of the options (f) 

1. Exercise price m 
2. Expected volatility• 
3. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date 
4. Expected dividends yield 
5. Risk free interest rate 
6. Fair value of the options (') 

* The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data. 

1. Exercise price (t) 
2. Expected volatility • 
3. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date 
4. Expected dividends yield 
5. Risk free interest rate 
6. Fair value of the options (t) 

• The expected volatility was determined based c,n historical volatility data. 

97,00,000 
Options 

Regranted 

DSL ESOP - 2008 
8,80,600 
Options 

Regranted 

24.15 
42.97% 

6 
10.82% 

7.45% 
4.31 

254.85 
47.15% 

6 
1.10% 
7.56% 
130.05 

20,50,000 
Options 

DSL ESOP - 2009 
95,00,000 
Options 

Regranted 
31.35 

48.96% 
Nil 

6.86% 
8.05% 

9.39 

DSLESOP-
2009 

98,00,000 
Options 

68 
69.05% 

6 
1.01% 
5.50% 
34.58 

16 
40.74% 

Nil 
16.33% 

7.45% 
1.38 

DSL-ESBS 
2020 

93,00,000 
SARs 

250 
76.57% 

Nil 
1.26% 
4.36% 
65.82 

18,00,000 
Options 

Regranted 

68.00 
69.05% 

6 
1.01 % 
5.50% 
34.58 

1,00,00,000 
Options 

Regranted 
219.65 

46.70% 
Nil 

1.27% 
6.54% 
106.31 

DSL-ESBS 
2019 

1,04,00,000 
SARs 

250 
68.45% 

Nil 
1.71% 
4.17% 
55.49 

DSL ESOP - 2008 & 2009 

1. Vesting Date 
2. Exercise price (') 
3. Expected volatility • 
4. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting datt 
5. Expected dividends yield 
6. Risk free interest rate 
7. Fair value of the options (t') 
8. Average Price 

28-Jun-23 
30 

70.92% 
Nil 

0.66% 
6.70% 
15.69 
17.92 

18,00,000 and 98,00,000 
0 !ions 

28-Jun-24 28-Jun-25 28-Jun-26 
30 

68.20% 
Nil 

0.66% 
6.87% 
17.00 

30 
66.66% 

Nil 
0.66% 
6.97% 
18.15 

30 
65.39% 

Nil 
0.66% 
7.05% 
19.09 

28-Jun-27 
30 

63.19% 
Nil 

0.66% 
7.09% 
19.69 

• The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data. 

D. Share based payment expense: 

The Company has recognised reversal of Share bast:d payments expense to employees in the standalone statement of Profit and loss 
as follows: 

For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Share based payments expenses/ (reversal) (65.80) (3,905.79) 

/65.80) (3,905.79) 



OHAN! LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Much 20241 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note•57 
The provisions related to corporate social responsibility in terms of s«tion 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

Note-58 
(A) Disclosures in terms of Annex XI of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of !India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 

Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors: Nil (Previous year: Nil) 

(BJ Disclosures in terms of Annex IX of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 

Details of dividend declared durin~ the financial year: Nil (Previous year: Nil) 

Note-59 
Disclosw-es under Sole B.sed Regulation pW'Suant to RBI Circular RBV2022 .. 2J126 OOR.ACC.REC.No.2Wll.04.018/Z022·23 dated 19 April 2022: 

A) Exposure: 
1) Exposure to real estate sector. Refer note 50 v.(a) 

2\ Exnosu1e to unital market Asat 

Particulars 31 Marth 2024 

i. direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which 

is not exclusively invested in corporate debt 
ii. advances against shares/ bonds/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / 
ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented! mutual funds; 
iii. advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convtirtible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are 

taken as primary security; 
iv. advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security or shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or 
units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares/ convertible bonds/ convertible debentures / units of 

equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances; 
v. secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and 2uarantees issued on l>ehalf of stockbrokers and market makers; 
vi. loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/ bonds/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting 
promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raisin.g resources; 

vii. bridge loons to companies against expected equity flows/ issues; 
viii. Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue or shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or 

units of l'<luitv oriented mutual funds 

ix. Financino to stockbrokers for marein tradino 

x. All exf'\t\Cures to Alternative lnvestment Funds: 

a\Cat.,.o~ I 
b\ Cate<>orv II 

cl Cate•o~ UI 
xi. All exnnsures to venture caoital funds fboth reoistered and unreelsteredl 
Total exnosure to caoil•l muket 

J Sectoral e'"""sure: 
As at 3l M•-h 2024 As at •1 Ma~h 2"'" 

Total Exposure Percentage or 
Toi.I Exposure 

Sr. Sectors 
(includes on Gross NPAs to 

(i,,cludes on Gross NPAS 
balance sheet and Gross NPAs 

total exposure in 
b•l•nce sheet and 

o(f-balance sheet off-balance sheet 

exposw-e) 
that sector 

exposure) 

1 A•riculture and Allied Activities 01' . 

2 Indus''" 01' . 
1 r--rvi"'es 138.77 3.61 2.601' 262.64 7.48 

4 Personal 1 "•ns 33.23 26.63 80.141' 88.25 50.52 

s '"'h•~ 1,539.7.) 1.99 0.131' 1,068.26 0.42 

4) Intra~,e.roup exposures: 

Asat 
Particulars 31 Marth 2024 

n Total amount of intra•Prouo exoosures 672.98 

m Total amount of top 20 intra-oroun exn,'U'ures 672.98 

iii\ Percentac.,e of intra-Rrouo exoosures to total exnnsure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 39.321' 

5) Unhedged foreign currency exposure: 
The Company has no unhed2ed foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2();!4 (31 March 2023: Nil) (Refer note- 53 b) 

B) Disclosure of Complaints: 
1\ Summarv infomu.tion on comnlaints received bv the NBFCs from custom•U'S and from the Offices o( Ombudsman 

As ill 
Puticulus 31 March 2024 

Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers 
1. No. of complaints pending at the beginning or the year 22 

2. No. of complaints received during the year 3,202 

3. No. of complaints disposed during the year 3,217 

3.1 of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 
4. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 7 

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 
5. Number of maintainable complaints received bv the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 794 

5.1 of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC bv Office or Om budsrnan 788 
5.2 of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advis,ories issued bv Office or Ombudsman 6 

5.3 of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards bv Office of Ombudsm,n against the NBFC 

6. Number of Awards unimnlPmPnted within the stinulated time lothe:r tha111 those il"" .... eale"'' 

I Amount in ( crore} 
As at 

31 Much 2023 

. 

. 

. 

I Amount int crore) 

Percentage of 
Gross NPAs to 

total exposure in 
that sector 

0% 
0% 

2.85% 
57.25% 
0.04% 

(Amount in t crorel 
Asat 

31 Much 2023 
411.00 
411.00 
28.%% 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

3% 
10,%1 
11,335 

22 

2.604 
2.553 

51 



OHANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
NotH to the stlld>lone Cin.anclill st•t•meots for the ytu endtd 31 March 20241 
(All amounts •re in lnch•n Rupees In lokh unless suled olherw~) 

Note -59 lcontinued) 
2) Top five eround• of comolaints N!Ctlwed bv the NBFC• from cuslomers· 

Grounds of complainlS, 
(le. complaints rebling to) 

l 

:vr Mi .. se 
ru11 . n3.•· ............ Jr ... .-1 .. u ... 

-l\11-t11\n reJatott 
.,_,._ "''•It'd 
M•o-l>ol,._. 

v--

Tnhl 

l<Yr Mis-t•~ 
.,_.,.,. <"1~1•""" "'lah><I 
El.fl uu.m"'nt RP-I"._. 
p, ... .d. ,,.. : ......... ri-..i .. n t"'h r-- Roi"'•-

P,n,t,.,t W•ll•I R•l•IM 

"'""-
T•"' 

Nole-60 

Number of 
romplaints 

ptoding •t tht 
beginning of th• 

yeu 

2 

4 
5 
6 
I 
3 
3 

22 

57 
17 
74 
11 
26 

211 
3~ 

Number of •to incrtast1 Number of Of 5, number of 
complainlS decru.se in tht complaints complaints 

received during numbttof ptnding 11 the end ptnding beyond 
th• ytu complaints oftheyur JO days 

re<tivtd OVtt tht 
previous year 

1 • ' Ii 
lurffnl vear 

985 ,u"\ 3 
890 ,~,'II.I 

364 (38"1 
344 '~"I I 
112 146" I 
5(f] 

"'"" I 3 
3,202 7 

p, .. vJnu• vea.r 
3,043 144" 4 . 

539 111"1 . 
483 =ssl -
224 174"' . 

78 '"""I 
6 594 30" 13 

10,961 17 . 

Olsclosllft rel•ting lo Stcuritis,tion pursuant to Reserve bnk of India notification RBVOOJV2021-V/85 OOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177(2021-22 doted 24 Seplember 2021 for Non-STC 
S.Curilisation 1r1nSJl<tio05. 

Al For Non-STC Stcv.rllisatioo lrlDS>Ctions: (Amount in , crore) 
For the year ended For the yeu ended 

Puticub.rs 31 Much 2024 31 Much 2023 

1. No of SPEs holding usets for secun11 .. tion tr1ns.te11ons originaltd by the or:ig1na1or 
(only the SPVs relobng to outsundfng securiliuobon txposures to be reported hero) 

1 l 

2. Toi.I amount or secunbsed assets is per books of the SPEs 54.57 79.83 
3. Total amount of exposun,s retained by the originator 10 comply with MRR a,; on the d•te of balance sheet 
I) Off-balance sheet exposures 

- First loss 
-Others 

h) On-bal•nce sheel exposures 
- First loss 16.118 16.88 
-Others 

4. Amounl of exposures to securitlsallon lransaclions other than MRR 
a) Off-balance sheet exposures 

• Exposure to own t«uritiubons 
- First loss 
-Others 

• Exposure to third party securlli<ations 
- First loss 
-Others . 

b) On-balance sheel exposures -
.. Exposure too~ n securib.sibOns 

- First loss 
-Others 

- E•posure to third party securills,tions 
- Firsl loss 
-Oihtrs 

5. S.le considerabon received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on .. 1e on accounl of securibsabon 

6. Form and qu•ntum (oulStanding value) of services provided by way of, liqu.idity suppor~ post-securilisation asset servicing, etc. 
7. Performance of facility provided. Ple•se provide S<'parately for each facility viz. Credi! enhancemen~ liquidity support, servicing agent 60 
etr. Mention perctnt ,n bracket IS of toul v•lue of f•cihty provided 

tn,-estment in Serie A2 PTC 
(a) Amount paid 16.88 
(b) Repayment received 
(c) Outsrandlng amounl 16.88 16.88 

8. Average defaull rate orr.;rttolios observed in the past. 
9. Amount and number o additional/top up loan given on .. me underlying asset. Please provide breakup separately for each assel class i.e. 
RMBS, Vehicle loan5 etc. 

(a) Number 
(b)Amounl 

10. Investor complainlS: 
(a) Directly/ Indirectly received 
lbl ComoloinlS oulStandin• 

8) ForSTC (Simple, transparenl and comparable) Sccurlti .. tion Tran5aclions: Nol applicable 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Much 20211 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note-61 
Brtach of rovena.nt 

The Company has not breached any covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued. 

Note -62 
Oisdosures pursuant to RBI (Scale based Re1tulation) Circular - RBV2022-23/l~ DOR.ACC.REC.No.2(Vll.04.018/2022-2J dated 19th April 2022: 

Al The additional provi.sioning requirements assessed by RBI (or Nation.al Housing Bank(NHB) in the case of Housing Finance Companies) exceeds Sll of the reported profits 
before tax and impairment Joss on financial instruments for the referen<·e period. 
Not applicable 

B) Additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI exceeds 5 per cent of the reported Gross NPAs for the reference period. 
Not applicable 

Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisionin1t: Not Applicable 

Note -63 

Related Party disclosures under Scale Based Regulation pursuant to RBI Circ,ular RBJ/2022-23(26 DOR.ACC.REC.No.2W2].04,018,'2022-2J dated 19 April 2022: 

Refer note - 44 for related party transactions 

Note -64 

As at31 March 2024, there were no dues required to be credited to the Investor !Education and Protection Fund under Section 124(5) of the Acl (31 March 2023: t Nil). 

Note -65 
i) The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(i~:), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise) that the Company shall; 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identifi,ed in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like lo or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ( Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediaries shall; 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identifioed in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like 10 or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

Note -66 
There are no charl(es or satisfaction of char1tes vet lo be re1tislered with Rel(istrar of Companies beyond the statutory period, bl' the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024. 

(n1is ,,-u:e 1,as be,11 i11te11tio11ally left bln11k) 



OHANI LOANS ANO SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the stand•lone financi•I statements for the year ended 31 Man:h 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

~:~ee:t7he Sea.le B;1sed Regulations (SBR) dated September 30, 2022 of Reserve Banko( India, the Comp.iny £111.s under the •Middle Layer (NBFC•ML)• utegory. 
Oisdoturies pursuint to RBI Circular RBV2022•2.'.V26 DOR.ACC.REC.No.2(V'21.0C.018(l02:2•23 as at and for lhe year ended 31 March 2024: 

Corporate govema_nce 
ll Composition of the Board of Directors as •t 31 March 2024: 

C•p•city (i.e. Numbe< of Doud Remuneration 

Director since 
Executive/ Non- Executive/ Meetin2s No. of other 

SJ. Name of Director Chairman/ Promoter DIN Directorships Salary and other 
No nominee/ Independent) Held Attended compensation 

Sitting Fee 

Brig. labh Singh 14-09-2017 Chaim,an, Independent 01724•648 4 3 I 3.00 
1 

Si1ara(Re1d) Director 

2 Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap 01-01-2023 Whole time Director & CEO 03405178 4 4 I 83.56 

3 Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha 04-10-2023 Independent Director 01352748 4 2 7 200 

4 Mr. Akshay Kumar 28-11 -2022 Non-Executive Direc1or 00366348 4 4 13 

Tiwary 

s Mr. Amit Ajit Gandhi OS-04-2023 Non-Executive Director 7606699 4 3 6 

6 Ms, Sargam kataria 01-08-2023 Non-Executive Oircetor 7133:194 4 2 13 

Comcosition o e Oil 0 ue<tors as at 31 Mil.f'C f th B d f D. h 2023 : 

C•pacity (i.e. 
Number of Board Remunuation 

SI. Executive/ Non- Executive/ 
Meetings No. of other 

No Name of Director Director since 
Chairman,' Promoter 

DIN Oirectorshi ps Salary and other 
nominee/ Independent) Held Attended compensation 

Sitting Fee 

1 Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap 01-01-2023 Whole time Director & CEO 03405-178 6 2 1 15.34 

2 Ms. Rltu Kapoor Puri 04-04-2022 Executhre Director 09559548 6 6 I 53.90 

3 Mr. Akhil Gupta 26-04-2022 Non-Executive Non 09285050 6 s NIL 
Independent Director 

4 Mr. Akshay Kumar 23-11-2022 Non-Executive Non 00366348 6 2 19 
Tiwary Independent Director 

5 Brig. labh Singh 14-09-2017 Chairman, Independent 01724648 6 6 6.00 
Sitara(Retd) Director 

6 Or. Narendra Oamodar 17-11-2020 Independent Director 02435444 6 6 5 16.00 6.00 
Jadhav 

Details of chanee in comoosition of the Board of Directors durine the vear ended 31 March 2024· 
SL Capacity· Nature of change 
No. 

Ni.me of Director 
(i.e., Ex~cutive/ Non-Executive/ (resign.ation, itppointment) 
Chairman,' Promoter nominee/ 
Independent) 

I Ms. Saraam Kataria Non-Exec:utive Director Anrw:intmenl 
2 Ms. Ritu K.afVV\r Puri Executive Director Rcs:ionation 
3 Mr. Amit A'it Gandhi Non-Exec:utive Director A"'...,...;ntment 
4 Mr. Akhil Gucta Non-Exec:utive Director Resianation 
s Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha lndeocndcml Direc1or Annt"Untment 
6 Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav lndeocndt:nl Director Resio:na1ion 

Delails of chan2e in comoosition of the Doud of Directors durino the v,.r ended 31 Mlarch 2023· 
SI. Name of Director C•pacity (i.e., Executive/ Non• Nature of change 
No. Executiv,e/ Ch,irman,' Promoter (resignation, •ppointment) 

nomine~/ Independent) 

1 Ms. Preetinder Virk Non-Executive Non lndenPndent Resionation 
2 Ms. Ritu Kar'VV'Or Puri Executivt! Director Annnintment 
3 Mr. Aiit Kumar Mittal Non-Exe,cutive Non lndeoendent Resl•nation 
4 Mr. Akhil Guvta Non-Exe:utive Non lndeDPndent A, ... ,...,...intment 
5 Mr. Nafees Ahmed Non-Exe,:utive Non lnde,.,ndent Resionation 
6 Mr. Vioin Chaudharv Non-Exe,:utive Non lndeoendent Annnintment 
7 Mr. Vivin Chaudharv . Non-Exe,:utive Non Inde.,..ndent Resicrnation 
8 Mr. Akshav Kumar Tiwarv Non-Exe,:utive Non lnde=ndent A .... ...,..inhnent 
9 Mr. Pinank !avant Shah Executiv,i Direclor & CEO Resici:nation 
10 Mr. Sanieev Kashvav Whole time Director & CEO Annnintment 

No. of shares held 
in and convertible 
instruments held 

Commission in the NBFC 

I equity share as a 
nominee of Dhani 
Services Limited 

I equity share as a 
nominee of Ohani 
Services Limited 

No. of shares held 
in and convertible 
instruments held 

Commission in the NBFC 

I equity share as a 
nominee of Ohani 
Services Limited 

I equity share as a 
nominee or Dhani 
Services Limited 

Effective date 

0I/08n023 
31/07n023 
0S/04n023 
05/04n02J 
04/10n023 
04/J0n023 

Effective date 

04 04 2022 
04 04 2022 
26 04 2022 
26 04 2022 
01 07 2022 
01 07 2022 
2a 11 2022 
2a 11 2022 
01 01, 2023 
01 0i72023 



OHAN! LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standa.lone financial statements for the yeu ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -67 
Corponte gove.man(e (continued) 

2) Committees of the Bo.ird ,1.nd their composition 

i) There are following Committees of the Board: 
1 Audit Committee 
2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
3 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
4 Integrated Risk Management Committee 
5 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

ii) For each committee, the summarized terms of reference are as per following: 

(A)Audit C ommittee as at t •rt 3 M h2024 : 

SI. Name of Diredor Member of Commilltt since 

No 

I Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha 04-10-2023 

2 Bri~ Labh Sin•h Si1au /Reid.\ 03-04-2018 

J. Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap 01-01-2023 

A dll Co mittee as at 31 March 2023· u m 
SI. Na.me of Director Member of Committee 

N since 
o. 

1 Brig, Labh Sin•h Sitara fRetd.\ 03-04-2018 
2. Dr. Narendca Damodar Jadhav 12-02-2021 
3. Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap 01-01-2023 

Terms of reference of committees w.r.t Aud.it Committee: 

C•paci1y 
(i.e .• E:ncutive/ Non•Encutive/ Chainnan/ Promocer nominee/ 

In' , _ -•' 

Chairman.. lndeoendcm Director 
Member lnde""ndent Director 

Member, Whole time Direc1or & CEO 

C•p•dty 
(i.e., Ex,ecutive,' Non-Executive,' Chairmaiy Promoter nominee,' 

Independent) 
Chairman, lndeoendent Director 
Member, lndeoendent Director 

Member, Whole time Director & CEO 

To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information; 

--:-; -;- ~~ .. , No. of sharts held in 
Held Allended lhe NBFC 

4 2 
4 J 
4 4 I equity share as a 

nominee ofOhani 
0 • ..,;,..1 ;m;,.,. 

Number of Meetings o( No. o( shores held 
.. L...., rnmmi ·-- in the NBFC 

Held Attended 

4 4 
4 4 
4 1 1 equity share as a 

nominee of Ohani 
Services Limited 

To review with management. annual financial statements and ensure their accuracy and correctness before submission to the Board; 
To review with management and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal conmol systems, approving the internal audit plans/reports and reviewing the efficacy of their function, discussion and 
review of periodic audit reports including findings of internal investigations; 
To recommend the appointment of the auditors and their remuneration; 
To review and approve required provisions to be maintained as per IRAC norms and write off decisions and regulatory requirements 01\ Balance Sheet Disclosures; 
To hold discussions with the Auditors; 
Review and monitoring of the auditor' independence and performance and effecti ve,,ess of the audit process; 
Examination o( the auditor' report on financial statements o( the Company (in addition to the examination o( the financial statements) before submi.ssion to the Board; 
Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 
Scrutiny o( inter--corporate loans and investments; 
Valuation of undertakings and assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 
Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters as and when such funds are raised and also reviewing the utilization of the funds so raised for purposes other than 
those stated in the relevant offer document, i( any, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board in this regard; 
Review and moniloring of lhe performance of lhe statutory auditors and effectiveness of the audit process; 
To hold post audit discussions with the auditors to ascertain any area of concern; 
To review the whistle blower mechanism; and 
Approval to the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc. or the candidate. 
Review of information system audit of the internal systems and processes to aCC4!$S the operational risks faced by the Company and also ensures that the information system audit of the Internal 
systems and processes is conducted periodically. 

(Bl Nomination & Remuneration Committee as at 31 March 2024· 
SI. Name or Director Mtmbt.r ofCommittte since Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ Chairman/ Promoter 
N• - ·--!---' 

I Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha 04-10-2023 Chainnan lndeMndent Director 
2. 

Bri~. Labh SinQh Sima (Re<d.l 03-04-2018 Member lndenendent Director 
3. Mr. Abhay Kumar Tiwary Member, Non-Executive Direc1or 

28-11-2022 

Nomination & Remunerition Commiuee as at 31 March 2023· 
SI. Name o( Director Membe.r of Committee C•p•cily (i.e., Executive,' Non-Executive/ Chairm•iv Promoter 
N since nominee/ Independent) 

" 
1. Brio. Labh Sinoh Sitara <Retd.l 03-04-2018 Chairman, lndeoendent Director 
2. Dr. Narendra Oamodar ]adhav 12-02-2021 Member, lnde,,.,ndent Director 
3. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary 28-11-2022 Miember, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 

Nominal:ion & Remuntrilion Comm.ittee: 
To ensure 'fit and proper' status of all the directors on a continuing basis; 
To identify and ad vice Board in the matter of appointment of new Directors and senior management per50nrltl's; 
To recommend 10 the Board. appcintment, removal and compensation terms of the Executive Directors; 
To assist the Board in determining and implementing the Compiiny's PoUcy on the remunE•rahon of Execuhve Directors; and 
To review the evaluation of director's performance. 

(Cl Stakeholders Relationshin Committee as at JI Marth 2024· ' ' 
SI. Name or Director Member of Committee since Capacity (i.e.. Executive/ Non-[ncutivt/ Chairman/ Promoter 
N• -••-'····' 

I. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary 28-11-2022 Chainnan. Non•Executive Director 

2. Bnjt Labh Sinon Si1ara (Reid.) 12-03-2019 Member Jnden,,ndent Director 
3, Ms, Saro:am Kataria 01-08-2023 Member Non• Executive Director 

Num~ .. ,~1--tin•s ,., No. of shares held in 
Htld Attendfd .-. ,mu" 

3 I 

) J 
3 ) I equity share as a 

nominee of Dhani 
Services Limited 

Number o( Meetings o( No. oC shares held 
the Committee in the NBFC 

UolA Attended 
7 7 
7 7 
7 2 1 equity share as a 

nominee o( Dhani 
Services Limited 

Numbtr ofMettin'"s or No. or shares held in 
Held Attended 1h,NAJ1r 

2 2 I equjty share as a 
nominee ofDhani 
Services Limittld 

2 2 
2 I 

{\ 

(,/l 

r 
·e- § 

~Y. Q)~· 

0 .•, ~ 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the st.And•lone finandal statements for the yeu ended 31 Mmh 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stared otherwise) 

Note -67 Corporate govemanct (continued) 

Stak h ld rs Relatlonshio Co mittee as at 31 Much 2023· e 0 e m 
SL Name o( Director Member o( Committee 
No since 

1. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary 28-11-2022 

2. Brie. Labh Sin•h Sitara IRetd.l 12--03-2019 
3. Ms. Ritu Ka~, Puri 04--04-2022 

SW<eholders Relationship Committee: 
To approve requests for share transfers and transmi,ssions. 

Capacitty (i.e., Executlvf/ Non-Executlvf/ Chairmary Promoter 
nomlnef/ lndept,ndent) 

Chairman, Non-Executive Non independent Director 

Member, Indeoendent Director 
u ....... i-.. Ex--.. nvp OirP<tor 

To approve the requeslS pertaining to remat of shares/sul>-division/consolidation/issue of renewed and duplicate share certificates etc. 
To oversee all matters encompassing the shareholders' / investors' related issues. 

Numb<!r of Meetings of No. of shues held 
the Committee in the NBFC 

H•ld Att•nd•d 
4 I 1 equity share as a 

nominee of Dhani 
Services limited 

4 4 
4 4 

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints related to transfer/ transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report non-receipt of declared 
dividends, issue of new /duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 
Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
Review of adherence to the service standards adopred by the Company in respect c,f various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agenl 
Review of the various measures and initiative$ taken by the Company for reducing the quantum o( unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants 
/ annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company. 

CD) Inlet.rated Risk M1n12tmtnt Commiltte as at 31 March 2024· 
SI. Name. of Dirtctor Member of Committee sintt Capacity (i.e., Extculivt/ Non•Executive/ Chairman/ Promott.r 
No. -·-: ........ , 
I Mr. Aksh.ay Kumar Tiwary 01-01-2023 Chairman. Non•Exticutive Director 

2 Bri•. labh Sin•h Sitara (Re<d.) 01-01-2023 Member IndeDCndent Director 
3 Ms. Sanzam Kataria 01-08-2023 Member Non.Executive Director 
4 Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap 25-04-2019 Member. Whole time Dirce1or & CEO 

s Mr. Amit Kindo 01-01-2023 Member 
6 Mr. R.aieev Lochan A2nwal 01-01-2023 Member Chief financial Officer 
7 Mr. Amit Mittal 09--06-2023 Member 

lnte2.rattd Risk Manae:ement Committee as at 31 March 2023: 
SI. Name of Director Member of Committee Capacity (i.e., Executh1e/ Non~Executive/ Chaimtaf\/ Promoter 
No since nominef/ Independent) 

1. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary 01-01-2023 Ch,airman, Non-Executive Non Independent Director 

2. Bri2. Labh Sin2h Sitara IRetd.l 01-01-2023 Member, lndeoendent Director 
3. Ms. Ritu l(a,vv-.r Puri 01-01-2023 Member, Executive Director 
4, Mr. 5.lnje,!v l<Ashyap 25-04-2019 Member, Whole time Director & CEO 

s. Mr. Amit Kindo 01-01-2023 Member 
~- Mr, Raieev Lochan A,rawal 01-01-2023 Member, Chief Financial Officer 
7. Mr. Sumit Car, 01-01-2023 Member 

Integn.ted Risk Management Committee: 
Approve the Credit/Operation Policy and its review/ modification from time to time. 
Review of Customer complaints received by Regulators, Courts, ~al body or internal complaints. 
Review of Grievance Redressal Mechanism and Customers Services. 
Review of applicable regulatory requirements. 
Approve all the functional policies of the Company. 
Review of Branc.h Audit Report/Concurrent Audit Report of Treasury. 
Review Compliances of lapses. 
Place appropraate mechanism in the system to c.ster Fraud while dealing with customers/ approval of loans etc. 
Review of profile of the high loan Customer$ and periodical rev.ew of the same. 
Review of implementation of FPCs, KYC and PMLA guldehnes. 
Define loan sanchoning authoritieS for various types/values of loans. 
Any other matter involving Risk to the asset /business of the Company. 
Evaluation or the risk management systems (in addition to the internal control systems). 

(E) Corporate Social Re:soonsibili1v (CSR) CommittH as al 31 March 2024· 
SI. Name or Director l\-1c..mbt:r ofCommitttesince Capac.ity (i.e.. Execufo•t/ Non•Extcutive/ Chairman/ Promoter 
No ···-····' 

l. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary 01-01-2023 Chairman, Non•Exocutivc Non Independent Oircc1or 

2 Brio. L&bh Sinoll Sitara rRetd.l 14-09-2017 Member lnde~ndent Director 
3. Ms. Sanz.am Kataria 01-08-2023 Member Non.Executive Director 

Coruorale Social Resoonsibilitv ICSRI Committee as at 31 Much 2023· 
St. Name of Director Member of Committee Capac!~/ (i.e., Executivf/ Non-Executivf/ ChairmaJ\I' Promoter 
No since nominee/ Independent) 

1. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary 01-01-2023 Chairman, Non•Executive Non lndependent Director 

2. Bri•. Labh Sineh Sitara (Reid.) 14-09-2017 Member, [ndeoendent Director 
3. Ms. Ritu Kannor Puri 04--04-2022 Member, Executive Director 

Number or M,. ine, or 
Htld Alltnded 

IS IS 

IS 10 
15 10 
IS IS 

15 15 
IS IS 
IS 12 

Number of Meetings of 
the Committee 

Held Attended 

12 5 

12 5 
12 5 
12 12 

12 5 
12 s 
12 5 

Numbt.r ofMH•Cines or 
H,.ld I•"••••• 

I 1 

I I 

I -

Number of Meetings of 
the Committee 

Held Allended 
1 

1 1 
I I 

No. or shares held in 
•••NRFr 

I equity share as a 
nominee of Dhani 
Services Limited 

I equity share as a 
nominee of 0hani 
Services Umited 

No. of shares held 
in the NBFC 

1 equity share as a 
nominee of Ohani 
Services Limired 

11 equity share as a 
nominee of Dhanl 
Services Limited 

No. or shares held in 
lh,~o,:-,-

I equity share as a 
nominee ofDhani 
Services Limited 

No. of shares held 
in the NBFC 

1 equity share as a 
nominee of Ohani 
Services Limited 



DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mlll'Ch 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -f,7 Corporate governance (continued) 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
To recommend to the Board, the CSR activity to be undertaken by the Company; 
To approve the expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activity; 
To oversee and review the effective implementation of the CSR activity; and 
To ensure compliance of all related applicable regulatory requirements. 

3) General Body Meetings 
Details or the d11e olace and soecial rtsolulions oassed al the G encral B od Mc-etrnes1 urine I e vear en e arc d d 31 M h 2024 .. 
SI .. No. Type or Meeting (AnnuaV E11n1i- Dale Place Special resolutions passed 

n.a, ·- ·' 
I Annual General Meecins 29-09-2023 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patd t, Appointment of Ms. Sargam Kataria (DIN: 07133394) as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Nagar, New Delhi-110008. of the Company with effect from August 01, 2023 
2. Payment of remuneration to Or. Narendra Damodar Jadhav (Din: 0243$444), Independent Director 
Of The COmpany In Excess Of The limiu Prescribed Under The Securities And Excllange Board Of 
India (listing Obligations And DiscloS<Jre Requirements) Regulations, 201 S 
3. Amendment Of Anicle Of Association By Insertion Of Clause 27A(I) & 27A(2) For Making 
Provisions for The Debcn1urc Trustees For Appointment of Nominee Director On The Board Of The 
Company As Required By The Sebi Regulations 

2 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 24-0S-2023 1/1 E. First Floor, East Patd Waiver Of Excess Managerial Remuneration Paid To Mr. Pinank /ayant Shah (Din: 078S9798), 
Nagar, New Delhi-110008. Erstwhile Whole-Time Director & Ceo Of The COmpany, For Fy 2022-23. Appointment Of Mr. Amit 

Ajit Gandhi (DIN: 07606699) As Non-Execu1ive Director Of The COmpany 

3 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 02-01-2024 I/ I E, First Floor, Eas1 Patd Appointment of Mr Prem Praka>h Mirdha (Din, 013S2748) As lndependen1 Director of The Company 
Nagar, New Delhi-110008. 

Oetilils of the date place •nd special resolutions passed at the Generol Bodv Meetin~s durin~ the vear ended 31 Mlll'Ch 2023· .. 
SI.No Type of Meeting (Annu•V Extn• Date Place Spedi.1 resolutions passed 

Ordinuv\ 
1 Annual General Meeting 29-09-2022 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel i. Re-appointment of Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah (DIN: 07859798) as a Whole-time Director & 

Nagar, New Delhi-110008. Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, for a further period of five years, with effect 
from September 14, 2022. 
ii. Re-Appointment of Brig. labh Singh Sitara (Reid.) (DIN: 0tn4648) as Independent 
Director of the Company for a further period of five years, with effect from September 14, 
2022. 
iii.Issue of Non-Convertible debentures and/or bonds, of the Company, on Private 
Placement basis. 
iv, Payment of remuneration to Or. Narendra Oamodar Jadhav (ON: 02435444), 
Independent Director of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(6)(ca) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
l?n1< 

2 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 30-05-2022 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel Waiver of excess Managerial Remuneration paid to Mr. Pinank JayantShah (DIN: 07859798), 
Nagar, New Oelhi-110008. Whole-time Director & CEO of the Company, for FY 2021-22. 

3 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 02-07-2022 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel 
Nagar, New Oelhi-110008. 

4 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 20-02-2023 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel 
Nagar, New Oelhi-110008. 

4) Oetoils of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013 
The Company has not defaulted in compliance with the requirements of Companies A.ct, 2013, including with respect to compliance with accountinst and secretarial standards. 

Note - 68 

The Company did not enter into any transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the !Ax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Note - 69 
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 (31 March 2023: ~ Nil). 

Note -70 
The Company has complied with the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 to the extent applicable. 

Nole -71 

The Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under se<·tion 248 of the Companies Ac~ 2013 or se<tion 560 of Companies Ac~ 1956 during the year ended March 31, 2024 
(31 March 2023: ~ Nil). 

Nole - 72 
The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the year and previous year. 

Nole -73 
There are no borrowing costs to be capitalised as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: t Nil). 

Note - 74 
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of se<tion 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017. 

Note -75 
There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Bena mi Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder. 



OHAN I LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Marchi 2024 

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise) 

Note -76 
Prior year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to conform to the current year's presentation. 

In terms of our report of even date attached. 

For Hem Sandeep & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAlr . , 009907N 

Ajay Sardana 
Partner 
Membership No.: 089011 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 17 May 2024 

f o, aod oo behal: of !he Boan! of Di,~ ' 

#-:- ~ 
Sanjeev Kashyap Akshay Kumar Tiwary 
Whole Time Director & Director 
Chief Executive Officer DIN: 00366348 
DIN: 03405178 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: 17 May 2024 

oA~w•~ 
c I Officer Company Secretary 


